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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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Building a better
working world

To the shareholders of

Times Property Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Times Property Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
8 to 186, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December
2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for
the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.



B AR E

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

BREMBEE

BHNETRBRERMANER  HRFRAMBRE
BRER -BMANBESHIBLEERERNZEERR (F
RENER) FL - MARBIEEBAR - HART
RABREENARE > HEMEMALTE ESRETM
BiE-

BPEBRELSMASRMNBT BB ENNRE
ETEZ RFEANBREMETERHASL - LHE
EAITESZ  NAEBESRAMBRRESFEMEM
BEREHRMRA -

ERSEBTRFURGERGAVBBRRMEATHE
ERBENEZRERE FIEANREFBURR KA H
B BRAGEARUFRERMEBGEAPHERRP
FAEREREFANRRE o £F 5 ERFHE - M
EEREZAARUEBEENTINEAM B HKERA
MAREET URFTEENEZRERF  MAIERZA
AMAREZNARERLEER - ERTEEFEE
EMRANEABRENEEELAMIELONGHEE
BEM  URFESREMBHRRNERIHIA -

ZPEE RMAMESHEZERERRMEE AR
fmEZE R ER -

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2013,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 February 2014



mEEmK
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

H= =F+ZA=+—BILFE Year ended 31 December 2013
—E-=F —E——F
2013 2012
k=3 AR TFT ARBFor
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
WA REVENUE 5 9,694,735 3,197,142
SHE KA Cost of sales (7.354,711) (2,288,184)
EF GROSS PROFIT 2,340,024 908,958
H YA K Wz Other income and gains 5 78,700 138,269
$HE RIS B A Selling and marketing costs (411,137) (204,279)
THRAX Administrative expenses (285,629) (145,098)
Ex Other expenses (16,493) (34,377)
b & B AR Finance costs 7 (87,706) (42,055)
NI B B Share of profits and losses of associates 2,371 5
BRBE Al F 5 PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 1,620,130 621,423
REY A Income tax expense 10 (646,200) (267,775)
FEFE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 973,930 353,648
TP IBMEAG - Attributable to:
ViN/NEIEZF SN Owners of the Company 11 987,022 362,916
FEVE S FE Non-controlling interests (13,092) (9,268)
973,930 353,648
ARAREBERFTEA EARNINGS PER SHARE
EhEERER ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 13
HEAR R E#E Basic and diluted

—FENE

— For profit for the year

RMB75 cents

AR¥TISSD

RMB28 cents

AR®28%

REE BN KBTI
12 ¢

BB RENM B RRME

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for

the year are disclosed in note 12 to the financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE2—ZT—=F+—"A=+—HI¥FE Year ended 31 December 2013

—E—-= —ET——F
2013 2012
AR¥FT ABREFIT
RMB'000 RMB'000
FEFE Profit for the year 973,930 353,648
REEHRFEN EE Other comprehensive loss to be reclassified to
BRnEMmEEER profit or loss in subsequent periods:
MEBINEGHE N Z5E Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations (9,748) (3,005)
FEHMZEEA OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (9,748) (3,005)
FEEZHBRAELE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 964,182 350,643
B ZIE=REV Attributable to:
ViN/NEIEZF SN Owners of the Company 977,274 359,911
eI PR A Non-controlling interests (13,092) (9,268)
964,182 350,643
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wRa MBI
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

—E-=F T
2013 2012
=3 ARETFT AR For
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - WENERE Property, plant and equipment 14 633,806 432,936
AN EFRIE Prepaid land lease payments 15 1,385,474 1,229,089
KEME Investment properties 16 1,582,000 1,540,000
R E N R E Investments in associates 18 45,304 42,934
IR TEE B Deferred tax assets 19 84,737 83,504
IR EELTR Total non-current assets 3,731,321 3,328,463
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories - 4,642
FE LR EFIE Prepaid land lease payments 15 755,881 265,813
FEsrh ) 3 Properties under development 20 13,217,733 9,350,228
DB THEHEME Completed properties held for sale 21 803,464 2,641,554
BUNE 5 38 Trade receivables 22 472,532 32,546
ENRIE 2k Prepayments, deposits and other
H {th e Uk 5038 receivables 23 1,895,624 3,580,567
BEAZIEKRE Held-to-maturity investments 24 - 305,700
FEU E B A Al H R I8 Amount due from the immediate
holding company 41(c)(ii) - 437,507
JE UL B 4R AR AR X R FR IR Amount due from the ultimate
holding company 41(c)i) - 16
A NG SE ] Amount due from an associate 25 70,210 63,880
FEUE EHRIE Amounts due from directors 26 - 3,438
A ERE Available-for-sale investments 3,100 3,100
TEE TR Tax prepayments 27 222,349 234,409
ZIRHERIT R Restricted bank deposits 28 1,946,083 897,299
ReNREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 28 1,721,481 936,446
mENVEEAE Total current assets 21,108,457 18,757,145
RBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
e 8 5518 Trade payables 29 2,413,862 2,872,646
H th JE AT 018 SR FE AT RRIE Other payables and accruals 30 9,392,801 8,718,085
SFERITER N EAMER Interest-bearing bank loans
and other borrowings 317 1,977,494 3,177,263
BN EEMFIE Amount due to a director 26 - 101,478
JE BT Tax payable 27 397,896 207,061
mEB EERE Total current liabilities 14,182,053 15,076,533

11



e BRI R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

—E—=%F+=-F=+—H 31 December 2013

—EB-=fF —E——4F
2013 2012
=3 AR¥FIT ARBTFT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
REBEEFHE NET CURRENT ASSETS 6,926,404 3,680,612
EEAER TOTAL ASSETS LESS
REBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES 10,657,725 7,009,075
FREBEME NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
STREIRITER R EMER Interest-bearing bank loans
and other borrowings 317 5,425,054 2,499,536
ELEFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 19 1,224,250 1,303,426
RSB EEE Total non-current liabilities 6,649,304 3,802,962
FEE Net assets 4,008,421 3,206,113
= EQUITY
RAEHEA AL ER Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
BEITENR Issued capital 32 135,778 -
fHiE Reserves 34 3,669,965 2,719,726
EEAERE Proposed final dividend 12 188,486 -
3,994,229 2,719,726
FEIERRHE = Non-controlling interests 14,192 486,387
AR Total equity 4,008,421 3,206,113
=6l $BR
Shum Chiu Hung Niu Ji Min
EFE EFE
Director Director

12



mEERBER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE2-Z—=F+_-A=+—HI5¥E Year ended 31 December 2013

ARAEANER
Attributable to owners of the Company
B T EERE AR
B AEE  HARR  ELGE Mg EXRE  BRNE st Ba  EREE
Share Statutory  Exchange Non-
Issued premium  Contributed Capital surplus translation Retained controlling Total
capital account surplus reserve funds reserve profits Total interests equity

NEETL ARETr AREFT AREFT AREFr AREFr AREFr AREFr AREFT AREFL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(W) WAL WEM)  EA)
(note 34(a))  (note 34(b))  (note 34(c)  (note 34(d)

RZE-Z%-f-H At 1 January 2012 - 1,452,565 8113 31,295 94,304 (13966) 787,504 2,359,815 491,22 2,851,037

EE2EWA/(EB)EE  Total comprehensive income/

(loss) for the year - - - - - (3,005) 362,916 359,911 (9,268) 350,643
ERERRLRS (W) Transfer to reserve funds

(note 34(d) - - - - 32,191 - (32,191) - - -
RIMBLTA Establishment of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - 2,000 2,000
IREEIHB AT (H3504) (i) Acquisition of a subsidiary

(note 35(4) (i) - - - - - - - - 2433 2433
RZE--%+-F=+—H At31 December 2012 - 1,452,565* 8113* 31,295* 126,495* (16,971)*  1,118,229* 2,719,726 486,387 3,206,113

13



GEREZBER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE2—ZT—=F+—"A=+—HI¥FE Year ended 31 December 2013

EOTELIN T

Attributable to owners of the Company

BEf Rt EERB BERE FER
a5 R EON:1] s 1 ARE ERRE BHHE RE b ] BEAR
Share Statutory Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued premium  Contributed Capital surplus  translation Retained final controlling Total
capital account surplus reserve funds reserve profits dividend Total interests equity
ARRTR  ARRTR ABRTR  ARRTAL  ARBRTAL  ABRTAL ABRTL  ARBRTL ARRFT ARRFT ARRFZ
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
W32 (WdEda)  (WEb)  (WEMC) ()
(note 32)  (note 34(a)  (note 34(b))  (note 34(c)  (note 34(d))
RZB-ZF+ZA=+-A  At31December 2012 and
R=%-=£-F-H 1 January 2013 - 1,452,565 8113 31,295 126,495 (16,971) 1,118,229 - 2,119,726 486,387 3,206,113
FERENA/ (B Total comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year - - - - - (9,748) 987,022 - 977,214 (13,092) 964,182
)} Transfer to reserve funds (note 34(d) - - - - 147,193 - (147,793) - - - -
HERHEAR Deregstration of a subsidiary - - - - (2.807) - 2,807 - - - -
WEHBAT Acquisition of subsidiaries
354N~ (8)1)) (notes 35(A)), (B)) - - - - - - - - - 10,353 10353
ek ER Acquisition of non-controlling interests - - - 6,879 - - - - 6,879 (479.456)  (472,577)
RUKBAR Establishment of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 10,000 10,000
BRI RS Capitalisation issue (note 32(a)) 101,827 (101,827) - - - - - - - - -
Issue of shares in connection
with the listing (note 32(b)) 33,951 1,188,051 - - - - - - 1,222,002 - 1,222,002
Share issue expenses (note 32(b)) - (57,739) - - - - - - (57,739) - (57,739)
Dividend declared (note 12) - (873,913) - - - - - - (873,913) - (873,913)
Proposed final 2013 dividend
(note 12) - (188,486) - - - - - 188,486 - - -
W=E-ZF+-B=F-H  At31December 2013 135,778 1,418,651* 8,113+ 38,174% 271,481* (26,719)*  1,960,265* 188,486 3,994,229 14192 4,008,421
* ZEHERRIEGAMBERARTEGEEHE - * These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated

14

reserves in the consolidated statement of financial

position.



mERERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE2-Z—=F+_-A=+—HI5¥E Year ended 31 December 2013

—E-=F —ET—-F
2013 2012
HqF ARETTT AREFT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
RETHHENRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
IR b Profit before tax 1,620,130 621,423
HE Adjustments for:
BE R Finance costs 7 87,706 42,055
e AN b= Share of profits and losses of associates (2,371) (5)
RITREMFEWA Bank and other interest income (9,574) (21,376)
e Depreciation 55,648 16,454
REMELRBENE Changes in fair value of investment properties (42,000) (110,000)
RIFEERR R S HE T Changes in fair value of certain other
HtEAZRIEA L BENE payables to a non-controlling shareholder - 2,144
BRTEHEHENYEDN (Reversal of impairment)/impairment of
(REER),RE completed properties held for sale (1,665) 1,665
BNTE REREM Reversal of impairment of prepayments,
W R IB R R (B [ deposits and other receivables (1,000) -
HENE - WEMREEE Loss on disposal of items of
HEE property, plant and equipment 34 658
By HEBARYE  Gains on deregistration/disposal of
subsidiaries (1,414) -
G =N E Gains on acquisition of a subsidiary (7,685) -
1,697,809 553,018
BT LR E R IEN (Increase)/decrease in prepaid land
(sm),/ m lease payments (340,190) 134,229
TFERY Decrease in inventories 1,032 -
FERid==Ek s E=0piyii Increase in properties under development (3,065,490) (1,195,138)
BRIZELENDEN Decrease/(increase) in completed
/() properties held for sale 1,839,755 (445,840)
FEUE 5 2 IEAIE N Increase in trade receivables (439,986) (13,382)
BRZE ke k Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,
B pelsBaE L, (8)  deposits and other receivables 1,594,956 (1,410,402)
JFE Uy S 435 I A BB R H) Decrease/(increase) in an amount due from
WA/ (Em) the ultimate holding company 16 (11)
JFE R B 42 N B B ER O B 12 Increase in an amount due from an associate (6,330) (3,700)
fENE ERTIBBHR D Decrease in amounts due from directors 3,437 561
ERZSZER Cid),/ i (Decrease)increase in trade payables (511,273) 316,308
H ) fE A5 508 K B 5T FUE R (Decrease)/increase in other payables
CRA),/m and accruals (45,396) 2,869,426
& 1~ 25 =5 /O SRIA AT SE AN Increase in an amount due to a director 1,006 2,439
ZIRHISRITFERE (320), /4 (Increase)/decrease in restricted bank deposits 28 (1,048,784) 140,240
mE (FR)/ EENRE Cash (used in)/generated from operations (319,438) 947,748
2R 8, Interest received 9,574 9.055
ERAE Interest paid (614,545) (459,716)
ENEEMER Corporate income tax paid (301,573) (74,332)
B I ER Land appreciation tax paid (230,563) (141,589)
meEs (FR) / EEm Net cash flows (used in)/generated
HenRe F5E from operating activities (1,456,545) 281,166

15



GERETRER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE =F+-F=+—HILFE Year ended 31 December 2013
—E-=F —ET—-F
2013 2012
HqF ARETTT AREFT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
REZBHFENESRE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BEVE HEAREBEE Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment (204,067) (17,791)
BERERINEE Purchase of held-to-maturity investments - (305,700)
HEME - BFEKREEE Proceeds from disposal of items of
OS] property, plant and equipment 464 66
IR B A T Acquisition of subsidiaries 35 (2,500) (3,544)
KB AT (TER—IEE7) Acquisition of subsidiaries that are
not a business 35 (251,004) -
U FE 1 B i 2 Acquisition of non-controlling interests (473,988) -
HEMB AR Disposal of subsidiaries 36 (3,682) -
WELEERANESREEE Net cash flows used in investing activities (934,777) (326,969)
Rﬂﬁ)ﬁ@]ﬁﬁ NEERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
HEERERRTE Contribution from non-controlling interests 10,000 2,000
U B AR R FUERIIE AN Increase in an amount due from
the immediate holding company (20,975) (431,519)
ISR TER N EMER New bank loans and other borrowings 5,635,187 3,164,552
ﬁﬁﬁgm&ﬁ{m TEER Repayment of bank loans and
other borrowings (3,603,752) (2,318,450)
D EATE I S5 Net proceeds from issue of shares 1,164,263 -
RMEETHEANELREFE  Net cash flows generated from
financing activities 3,184,723 416,583
ReERREEEWEMESE NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 793,401 370,780
FNReLAEEED Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year 936,446 565,700
[EREFHHTE T Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (8,366) (34)
FRAGRALEZEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR 1,721,481 936,446
REeERREEB/BUWERDIN ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
B4 RIBITES Cash and bank balances 28 3,667,564 1,833,745
W XBREIRITER Less: Restricted bank deposits 28 (1,946,083) (897,299)
HERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 28 1,721,481 936,446
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—E-=5F —T——-F
2013 2012
Wi AR¥TFT ARETFT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
M WE MERE Property, plant and equipment 14 361 375
a0 N EENE Investment in subsidiaries 17 - -
EMEEEEE Total non-current assets 361 375
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
TENRIE - e RHM Prepayments, deposits and
e Ug 518 other receivables 273 12
R B IR A B R SR8 Amount due from the immediate
holding company 41(c)ii) - 437,507
BN B #2175 % N Bl RO FRIE Amount due from the ultimate
holding company 41(c)(ii) - 10
JFEULBT B A B R R Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,356,235 922,852
BeNIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 28 785,876 7,356
ME)EEAT Total current assets 2,142,384 1,367,737
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
e ROE R B ETRUAR Other payables and accruals 546,894 -
I EPNGIESE S Amounts due to subsidiaries 116,133 117,867
ENESERIE Amount due to a director 26 - 11,029
mEBEReT Total current liabilities 663,027 128,896
REBEEFH NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,479,357 1,238,841
EEAERABERS TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,479,718 1,239,216
FEE Net assets 1,479,718 1,239,216
EE EQUITY
BETER Issued capital 32 135,778 -
fE & Reserves 34 1,155,454 1,239,216
EEREIRE Proposed final dividend 12 188,486 _
1,479,718 1,239,216
Xl 4+EBR
Shum Chiu Hung Niu Ji Min
o o
Director Director

17
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 14 November 2007 under
the name of Times Property (Holdings) Co.,
Limited as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22
of the Cayman Islands. Pursuant to a special
resolution passed on 24 January 2008, the
Company’s name was changed from Times
Property (Holdings) Co., Limited to Times
Property Holdings Limited. The registered
office address is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding
company. During the year, the Company’s
subsidiaries were mainly involved in property
development, property leasing and property
management in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC").

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate
holding company of the Company is Asiaciti
Enterprises Ltd. (”Asiaciti”), which was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
("BVI") and the ultimate holding company
is Renowned Brand Investments Limited
("Renowned Brand”), which was incorporated
in BVI. Renowned Brand is wholly owned
by Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (“Mr. Shum”), the
Founder of the Group.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on 11 December 2013.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting
Standards (”IFRSs”), which comprise all
International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Boards Committee and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements has
been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties,
certain payables included in “other payables
and accruals” and available-for-sale
investments, which have been measured
at fair value. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB")
and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2013. The financial statements of
the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.
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2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont'd)
Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the parent of the Group and to
the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full

on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described
in the accounting policy for subsidiaries
below. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair
value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES

—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new
and revised IFRSs for the first time for the
current year’s financial statements.

IFRS 1 Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
Amendments International Financial Reporting Standards
- Government Loans
IFRS 7 Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Amendments Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
[FRS 10, IFRS 11 Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and
and IFRS 12 IFRS 12 - Transition Guidance
Amendments
[FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IAS 1 Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of

Amendments Financial Statements - Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income
IAS 19 Amendments to IAS 19 - Employee Benefits
Amendments
IAS 27 Revised Separate Financial Statements
IAS 28 Revised Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
IAS 36 Amendments to IAS 36 Impairment of
Amendments Assets - Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets (early adopted)
IFRIC-20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of
a Surface Mine
Annual Amendments to a number of IFRSs issued
Improvements in May 2012

2009-2011 Cycle

The adoption of the new and revised IFRSs has
had no significant financial effect on these
financial statements.
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23 CHEMAGEEMAEMNEREEHRE 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

b =[] IFRSs

NEBWAELESVEREDERTIDHE The Group has not applied the following
HE 1B 1Y ok A 2 2 ST R SRS =T B B B8 B 76 3R new and revised IFRSs, that have been issued
g but are not yet effective, in the consolidated

financial statements:

BRI S £ £9% FBTA IFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

ERUBREENES - UALHARERUBREENSS IFRS 9, IFRS 7 Hedge Accounting and amendments to IFRS 9,
ARHBREEAETH EREEREEAETH RER €5 E and 1AS 39 IFRS 7 and IAS 39?

REBEHEE39H E395 2R Amendments
(B3T%)

AREBRSENZ 0% ERMBRSENE0R  BRHBRSE IFRS 10, IFRS 12 Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27
BB RS ERE12%, F120% Bilﬁ”X SHERIZE2TSE (E(B7T) - and 1AS 27 (Revised) - Investment Entities'
REBEENETH REEEBIK (Revised)

CCHNCHES Amendments

Bl &5 ER E195 BlR e ER S19%ESE - IAS 19 Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits -

(B3T%) REBTEE - EEHF L BAIR Amendments Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

IR &5 ER £33 RBes RN ENFL2HTA 25 - IAS 32 Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments:

(B3T%) EHEEAFERNAE BT Amendments Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'

o I-ZERCT-CERMNERNBREEN FRIE o Annual Improvements to IFRS 2010-2012 Cycle

o I--ER-R-CERMNERNBREEN FRIE o Annual Improvements to IFRS 2011-2013 Cycle

BIREeRE30% (BiTEK)  EREHRAEIFLHLA - B2fiTE - IAS 39 Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments:

T4 TR BERE B 22 TEL IR Amendments Recognition and Measurement - Novation
of Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting'
ERIBRERAREESENE 47 [FRIC 21 Levies'
1 N-E—NFE—A—HKZBEFHENEE ! Effective for annual periods beginning on or
BRI A after 1 January 2014
2 N —E+ A A BELEE 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
BRRS] A 3 after 1 July 2014
3 P H 57 4 3 No mandatory effective date yet determined
MR S ERE A - B TR but is available for adoption

NEFRFTEBRNERZS T RKEE The Group is in the process of making an

BEEMEREEANEENTZE . 45 K assessment of the impact of these new

=@ A E%:%ﬁﬂ&ﬁwﬂkﬂﬂ’\]!f%ﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁ and revised IFRSs upon initial application.

&% BT S NEEE) - B8 So far, Ithe Group considers that these neyv

n:i%gﬁgﬁgﬁi.m %%Z%E&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬂ . and revised IFRSs may result in changes in

accounting policies but are unlikely to have
a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

22



B TS ¥R R B

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 FESTHRME

o) PN

MERABEARRR,/ RARBEMLMHE A
AEFNER (BREBLEER) -

EAKERERESEAZSAZTAREYR
Al & Ol AR SER  WEEHRREHR
EREENZEL RS (MRAENAE
AEBENERFEREYRNAREE) -
BIRR A SR B B 1 I -

HWARREZLHEREINEREHRAZ
R ERBAURNOERN - B AKERFE
HREOHRAHREHSNENKEERE 1]
MHEREERER - 8% ¢

(a) BHEREHREMEBERFAANAGNZL
BE

(b) EHMAHOLBMELZNEN &

(0 ARENRERLBEERTE -

MEBARMEERED KBRS ALRR
AIRERA - RIFBFRM RS ERIZE SR -
I DB AFAELERARR RN E R R H
BE - BB EREEBER -

23

—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) controlled by the Company and/or its
other subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., the existing
rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the

investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly,
less than a majority of the voting or similar
rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the
other vote holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

(0 the Group’s voting rights and potential
voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of profit or loss to the
extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company’s investments in subsidiaries
that are not classified as held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 are stated at cost less

any impairment losses.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Investment in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group
has a long term interest of generally not less
than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are
stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net
assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’'s share of the post-acquisition
results and the comprehensive income of
associates are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the
associate, the Group recognises its share
of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investments in the associates except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associates is
included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Investment in associates (Cont'd)

The results of associates are included in the
Company’s statement of profit or loss to the
extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company’'s investments in associates are
treated as non-current assets and are stated
at cost less any impairment losses.

When an investment in an associate is
classified as held for sale, it is accounted for
in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred is measured at the acquisition date
fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Cont'd)

When the Group acquires a business, it
assesses the financial assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the previously held equity interest is
remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the acquirer is recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability
that is a financial instrument and within the
scope of IAS 39 is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value either recognised
in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of IAS
39, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate IFRSs. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured
and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Cont'd)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost,
being the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the
net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured
at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The
Group performs its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Cont'd)

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to
a cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of,
the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstances is measured based on
the relative value of the operation disposed of
and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties,
certain payables included in “other payables
and accruals” and available-for-sale
investments, at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants

act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial
asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best
use.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Fair value measurement (Cont’d)

The Group uses valuation techniques that
are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value
is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques

for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised
in the financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists,
or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required (other than inventories,
properties under development, completed
properties held for sale, prepaid land lease
payments, financial assets, investment
properties and deferred tax assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Cont'd)

An assessment is made as at the end of
each reporting period as to whether there
is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of
an asset other than goodwill is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the

Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member
of that person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over
the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i)  is a member of the key

management personnel of the

Group or of a parent of the

Group;

the party is an entity where any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are
members of the same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are

joint ventures of the same third

party;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Related parties (Cont'd)

(b)  (Cont'd)
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified
in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has

significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.



B TS ¥R R B

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 FEESTHEME (8)

M- BERRBRITE (8)

ME BEMRBERBRERMELEZX
o e RRE - BEREESHHHE
ARG ERER ENABALANER
T IERENTHEEREE  REERK
mEREPENE - WYE - BENMRENET
BENBAIREER  AAKESKARBEED
BARENEE  ABEEANAERFRAR
IRILITE o

WEDRAEGF A ERFRHUNEREMES
ME - BMEMKEHRBE ZKANEEFIRE
B> RUEMEBZEEFEINT

HE e EF 4.75%
HEWHEEE HHAEHAK20% 2
BEE

B RERRAERME 19%

RE 19%

35

—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Cont'd)

Expenditure incurred after items of property,
plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line
basis to write off the cost of each item of
property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:
Leasehold land and 4.75%
buildings
Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of
the lease terms

and 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 19%
office equipment
Motor vehicles 19%
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Cont'd)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment
including any significant part initially
recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents leasehold
improvements under construction, which is
stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised
borrowing costs on related borrowed
funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for
use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interest in land and
buildings held for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course
of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or
disposal of an investment properties are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or
disposal.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Leases

Leases, including subleases, where
substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are

accounted for as operating leases.

Where the Group is the lessor, for those assets
owned by the Group under operating leases,
they are included in the non-current assets
and rentals receivable under the operating
leases derived from lease and sublease
arrangement are credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases net of any incentives received from
the lessor are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial
recognition, as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, held-to-maturity
investments, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial investments,
as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at
fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets, except in the case of financial assets

recorded at fair value through profit or loss.



B TS ¥R R B

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 FEESTHEME (8)

REREMEBMEE (8)

IR R T8 (F)

FIE-—REBEEEEHRNRZ A (XK
EEEESZEEER) TIAER - —RE
BEER—RMISEEXENE—EHHE
ARXNEEZEMEEERS -

AEERBEFREERBEIBRITERRE
WHE ] [HERRHRE | R [A#HEES
BMNEINERMEE

)
h‘iﬁ:‘aﬁ
[}

TREENREFERFESBWT

/\/Ty\&ﬁg//fwﬁ

ER R EWRIAEL IR ERT S HRE - B
EERERABEBENTHFITESREE -
MRt ER  ZFEERKREBERN X
K HBHAANRTARERETE - 5T H
B 9H P R B 2B T N R B 2 AT () AT R s
B HEEBRERMNEEELINERK
AN - BEREMEREHF AGSBRRANE
A R E - BEEENBERNGFEBR
RNV E TR R E RS B B FE AR B ST P R

39

—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets
(Cont'd)

Initial recognition and measurement
(Cont’d)

All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group only had financial assets classified

s “loans and receivables”, “held-to-maturity
investments” and “available-for-sale financial
investments” during the years.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial
assets depends on their classification as
follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less
any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in other income and gains in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The
loss arising from impairment is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
finance costs for loans and in other expenses
for receivables.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets
(Cont'd)

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity
are classified as held to maturity when the
Group has the positive intention and ability
to hold them to maturity. Held-to-maturity
investments are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in other income and gains in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The
loss arising from impairment is recognised in
the consolidated statement or profit or loss in
other expenses.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments
are non-derivative financial assets in listed
and unlisted equity investments and debt
securities. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither
classified as held for trading nor designated
as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are
intended to be held for an indefinite period
of time and which may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or in response to changes
in market conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets
(Cont'd)

Available-for-sale financial investments
(Cont’d)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale
financial investments are subsequently
measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive
income in the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in other gain or
loss, or until the investment is determined
to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or
loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in
other expense. Interest earned whilst holding
the available-for-sale financial investments
are reported as interest income and are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity
investments cannot be reliably measured
because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant
for that investment or (b) the probabilities of
the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating
fair value, such investments are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets
(Cont'd)

Available-for-sale financial investments
(Cont’d)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and
intention to sell its available-for-sale financial
assets in the near term are still appropriate.
When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets if management
has the ability and intention to hold the assets
for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the
available-for-sale category, the fair value
carrying amount at the date of reclassification
becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has
been recognised in equity is amortised to
profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the effective interest rate.
Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is
subsequently determined to be impaired, then
the amount recorded in equity is reclassified
to the consolidated statement of profit of
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a
part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

J the rights to receive cash flows from
the asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights
to receive cash flows from the asset
or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Derecognition of financial assets (Cont’d)

When the Group has transferred its rights
to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses as at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the have an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation
and observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the Group first assesses whether impairment
exists individually for financial assets that
are individually significant, or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(Cont’d)

The amount of any impairment loss identified
is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account
and the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the
rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the estimated impairment loss increases or
decreases because of an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account.
If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery
is credited to administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss has been incurred on an
unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that
is linked to and must be settled by delivery
of such an unquoted equity instrument,
the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Impairment losses on these assets are
not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the
Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence
that an investment or a group of investments
is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an
amount comprising the difference between
its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less
any impairment loss previously recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Available-for-sale financial investments
(Cont’d)

In the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, objective evidence would
include a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below its cost.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original
cost of the investment and “prolonged”
against the period in which the fair value has
been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial
recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss or loans and other
borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially
at fair value and, in the case of loans and
other borrowings, net of directly attributable

transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade
and other payables, an amount due to a
director and interest-bearing bank loans and

other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss represent financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss are designated as at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39
are satisfied.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Financial liabilities (Cont'd)
Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)
Loans and other borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and other borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective

interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Financial liabilities (Cont'd)
Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the
Group are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because the specified
debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract
is recognised initially as a liability at its fair
value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of
the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments, representing
prepayments for leasehold land for development
for future sale in the ordinary course of
business, are stated at lower of cost and net
realisable value, of which those within normal
operating cycle are classified as current assets,
while those out of the normal operating cycle

are classified as non-current assets.

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to
be held for sale after completion.

Properties under development are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value
and comprise land costs, construction costs,
borrowing costs, professional fees and other
costs directly attributable to such properties
incurred during the development period.

Properties under development are classified
as current assets unless the construction
period of the relevant property development
project is expected to be beyond the normal
operating cycle. On completion, the properties
are transferred to completed properties held
for sale.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined by an apportionment of
the total land and buildings costs attributable
to unsold properties. Net realisable value takes
into account the price ultimately expected to
be realised, less estimated costs to be incurred
in selling the properties.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the

Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present
obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as
a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount

of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material,
the amount recognised for a provision is the
present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Retirement benefit scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. The PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central

pension scheme.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred
tax. Income tax relating to items recognised
outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the
current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability
method, on all temporary differences at the
end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary
differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, associates, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for
all deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and

unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

] when the deferred tax asset relating to
the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary

differences associated with investments
deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the

in subsidiaries, associates,

foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Income tax (Cont'd)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of properties in the
ordinary course of business is recognised
when all the following criteria are met:

(a) the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the properties are
transferred to purchasers;

(b) neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the
properties are retained;

(0) the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

(d) it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow
to the Group; and

(e)  the cost incurred or to be incurred
in respect of the transaction can be
measured reliably.

For the Group, revenue from the sale of
completed properties is recognised upon the
signing of the property handover letter, which
is taken to be the point in time when the risks
and rewards of ownership of the property
have been passed to the buyer.

Deposits and instalments received in respect
of properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under current
liabilities.

Rental income is recognised on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Interest income is recognised on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method
by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Property management fee income is recognised
when the services are rendered and the inflow
of economic benefits is probable.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors
are classified as a separate allocation of
retained profits within the equity section
of the consolidated statement of financial
position, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting.
When these dividends have been approved
by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed
and declared, because the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association grant
the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when
they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented
in RMB, which is the Group's presentation
currency. The functional currency of the
Company is Hong Kong dollars while RMB
is used as the presentation currency of the
financial statements of the Company for the
purpose of aligning with the presentation
currency of the Group. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries
operating outside the Mainland China are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end
of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into
the presentation currency of the Company at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period and their statements of
comprehensive income are translated into RMB
at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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For the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows

the cash flows of non-PRC
entities are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
non-PRC entities which arise throughout the
year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year
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JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
The preparation of the Group’s consolidated
WEEXE

financial statements requires management to
J

make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues
expenses,

assets and liabilities

ies, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities

Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result

in outcomes that could require a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future

63



501 75 S Y
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F—=%F+=-H=+—8 31 December 2013

3. EARSTHHE R (&) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont'd)
) Judgements

HERAASENSTHERED Ry
GEVBHREPERRSEENEATEN
HErN S REIN BEEDS/ELUATH
i

BEEHERE - A EFESLEA

AEBEREREMEXASRILAEYEHR
B NEEDRE - EH LB 2GR IEN
ETHENER L REELHERHEHE
WMEMBENMABTIZ2RAR KB -

REWERFELTEAYEBEH 7 E

AEBERENERENEREMERER I
EBIFTE s A BT IR - IWE MR RFFHE
ROHeRENEEIMERGOYE
e AEREEEMEELEZRSRERER
AEELLBYNASERENEMEE -

64

In the process of applying the Group’'s
accounting policies, management has made
the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the Consolidated financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as
lessor

The Group has entered into commercial
property leases on its investment properties
portfolio. The Group has determined, based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions
of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership
of these properties which are leased out on
operating leases.

Classification between investment
properties and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property
qualifies as an investment property, and has
developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or
both. Therefore, the Group considers whether
a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the
Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont’'d)

Judgements (Cont’'d)

Classification between investment
properties and owner-occupied properties
(Cont’d)

Some properties comprise a portion that is
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately or leased
out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately.
If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if
an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property
basis to determine whether ancillary services
are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.

Deferred taxation on investment
properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities arising from investment properties
that are measured using the fair value
model, the management of the Group has
reviewed the Group’s investment properties
and concluded that the Group's investment
properties are held under a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time. Therefore,
in determining the Group's deferred taxation
on investment properties, the directors
have determined that the presumption that
investment properties measured using the
fair value model are recovered through sale is
rebutted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont'd)

Judgements (Cont'd)

Deferred taxation on investment properties
(Cont’d)

Accordingly, the Group recognises deferred
tax in respect of the changes in fair value
of the investment properties based on
management'’s best estimate assuming future
tax consequences through usage of such
properties for rental purpose, rather than
through sale. The final tax outcome could
be different from the deferred tax liabilities
recognised in the consolidated financial
statements should the investment properties
are subsequently disposed of by the Group,
rather than all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties are
consumed substantially by leasing over time.
In the event the investment properties are
being disposed of, the Group may be liable
to higher tax upon disposal considering the
impact of corporate income tax and land
appreciation tax.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont'd)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the
future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year, are described below.

(a) PRC corporate income tax

The Group is subject to corporate
income taxes in Mainland China.
Due to the fact that certain matters
relating to the income taxes have
not been confirmed by the local
tax bureau, objective estimate and
judgement based on currently enacted
tax laws, regulations and other related
policies are required in determining
the provision for income taxes to be
made. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from
the amounts originally recorded, the
differences will impact on the income
tax and tax provision in the period in
which the differences realise. Further
details are given in notes 10 and 27 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont'd)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)

(b)

PRC land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land
appreciation tax in Mainland China. The
provision for land appreciation tax is
based on management’s best estimates
according to its understanding of the
requirements set forth in the relevant
PRC tax laws and regulations. The
actual land appreciation tax liabilities
are subject to the determination by the
tax authorities upon the completion
of the property development projects.
The Group has not finalised its land
appreciation tax calculations and
payments with the tax authorities for
certain property development projects.

The final outcome could be different
from the amounts that were initially
recorded, and any differences will
impact the land appreciation tax
expenses and the related provision in
the period in which the differences
realise. Further details are given in
notes 10 and 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont'd)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)
(c) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for
unused tax losses to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can
be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies.

(d) Recognition and allocation of
construction cost on properties
under development

Development costs of properties
are recorded as properties under
development during the construction
stage and will be transferred to
completed properties held for sale
upon completion. Apportionment of
these costs will be recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or
loss upon the recognition of the sale
of the properties. Before the final
settlement of the development costs
and other costs relating to the sale of
the properties, these costs are accrued
by the Group based on management'’s
best estimate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont'd)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)

(d)

Recognition and allocation of
construction cost on properties
under development (Cont’d)

When developing properties, the Group
may divide the development projects
into phases. Specific costs directly
related to the development of a phase
are recorded as the cost of such phase.
Costs that are common to phases are
allocated to individual phases based
on the estimated saleable area of the

entire project.

Where the final settlement of costs and
the related cost allocation is different
from the initial estimates, any increase
or decrease in the development costs
and other costs would affect the profit
or loss in future years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont’'d)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)

(e)

Estimation of fair value of
investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an
active market for similar properties,
the Group considers information from
a variety of sources, including:

—~

) current prices in an active market
for properties of a different
nature, condition or location,

adjusted to

differences;

reflect those

(ii) recent prices of similar properties
on less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any
changes in economic conditions
since the dates of the transactions
that occurred at those prices; and

(iii)  discounted cash flow projections
based on reliable estimates of
future cash flows, supported by
the terms of any existing lease
and other contracts and (when
possible) by external evidence
such as current market rents for
similar properties in the same
location and condition, and
using discount rates.

Further details, including the key
assumptions used for fair value
measurement, are given in note 16 to
the financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is
organised into the following reportable
operating segments:
(@)  Property Development and sale of
development: properties
(b)  Property leasing:  Property leasing
(including lease of
self-owned properties
and sublease of leased

properties)

() Property Provision of property
management: and hotel management
services
(d)  Others: Supermarket operation,
an incidental and
non-core business
of the Group*
# Foshan Zhide Wangu Supermarket
Company Limited (LTI EEEAR AL
MAMRZAF]), the subsidiary of the Group

operating the supermarket, was disposed
of in the first quarter of 2013. Details of
the disposal are set out in note 36 below.

The property development projects
undertaken by the Group during the year are
all located in the PRC.
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OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Management monitors the results of the
Group’s operating segments separately for
the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment
profit or loss, which is a measure of adjusted
profit or loss before tax. The adjusted profit
or loss before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit before tax except
that interest income, finance costs, share
of profits and losses of associates, as
well as head office and corporate income
and expenses are excluded from this
measurement.

The Group's revenue from external customers
is derived solely from its operations in the
PRC, and no non-current assets of the Group
are located outside the PRC.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets,
tax prepayments, restricted bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets
as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable,
deferred tax liabilities, interest-bearing bank
loans and other borrowings, and other
unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on

a group basis.

During the year, no revenue from
transactions with a single external customer
amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s
total revenue.
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4. EEHZTWBER (5 4. OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Cont'd)
MERS MERE NEEE
BE-%-=F Year ended Property Property Property Hity st
+ZA=+—-HILEFE 31 December 2013 development leasing management Others Total
ARETFT ARETT AREFn AREFT AR%ET7n
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBA Segment revenue
SRR HE Sales to external customers 9,443,320 154,412 97,003 - 9,694,735
ABEE Segment results 1,707,737 30,856 4,990 676 1,744,259
HR - Reconciliation:
FMEBA Interest income 9,574
AOEMEES T Unallocated corporate expense (48,368)
BMEKR Finance costs (87,706)
G E AR B Share of profits and losses of
associates 2,371
BRES A I Profit before tax 1,620,130
PEEE Segment assets 18,540,619 2,185,019 20,876 - 20,746,514
HiR - Reconciliation:
AOMREE Unallocated assets 4,093,264
BEES Total assets 24,839,778
PHERE Segment liabilities 11,506,794 247,485 52,384 - 11,806,663
AOEMEE Unallocated liabilities 9,024,694
BERSE Total liabilities 20,831,357
Hitvp HE R Other segment information
TE Depreciation (14,529) (40,853) (266) - (55,648)
REMEM AR EEKE Fair value gains on investment
properties - 42,000 - - 42,000
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4. EBSIER (©) 4, OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Cont'd)
MERE MERE MEER
BE-Z——-% Year ended Property Property Property Hit Bt
TZA=+T—HIEE 31 December 2012 development leasing  management Others Total
ANREFT  AREFT AREFT ARETFT AREFTL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBA Segment revenue
SRR e Sales to external customers 3,090,787 38,423 67,932 - 3,197,142
DEEE Segment results 528,405 133,296 (7,996) - 653,705
HiR - Reconciliation:
FIBUA Interest income 21,376
AOEMLELH Unallocated corporate expense (11,608)
BERA Finance costs (42,055)
G E AR BR Share of profits and losses of
associates 5
B E AR Profit before tax 621,423
THEE Segment assets 17,153,558 1,903,369 10,419 10,028 19,077,374
R - Reconciliation:
ROEWEE Unallocated assets 3,008,234
BEEEE Total assets 22,085,608
aHEE Segment liabilities 11,437,046 112,922 34,603 6,161 11,590,732
AOEREE Unallocated liabilities 7,288,763
BEEE Total liabilities 18,879,495
Hrn HER Other segment information
e Depreciation (16,142) (217) (95) - (16,454)
REMES R BEWE Fair value gains on investment
properties - 110,000 - - 110,000
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5. WA HtEA R Wz REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS
WA (IRBREBRHLEE) IEERNIEEY Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover,
EFESIFATE DWW RERGHES WAL represents the gross proceeds from the sale
DV E R N ONE N o 1 )i of properties, gross rental income received
%S . a and receivables and property management fee
o income, net of business tax and surcharges
during the year.
REBRA - EMRARKEODITET An analysis of the Group's revenue, other
income and gains is as follows:
—E—=5F —E—-—4F
2013 2012
HtaF AR¥FT ARBFT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
WA Revenue
MIEHEE Sale of properties 9,443,320 3,090,787
KB THEIER Gross rental income from:
HEWALEE
HEBAEYE lease of self-owned properties 40,112 38,423
A EYE sublease of leased properties 114,300 -
EBEEBIA Property management fee income 97,003 67,932
9,694,735 3,197,142
Hr A Other income
RTTH B UL A Bank interest income 6,435 9,055
H AR S HA Other interest income 3,139 12,321
Hh Others 18,027 9,037
27,601 30,413
Wz FEE Gains, net
W BT B A Al Wes Gain on acquisition of a subsidiary 3504)(i) 7,685 -
HEM B R RA Uk Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 36 1,414 -
REMER N EBERE Fair value gains on investment
properties 16 42,000 110,000
M IEFE AR IR S Y% T Ef Fair value changes in certain other
ENFERIABENED payables to a non-controlling
shareholder 30(a)(i) - (2,144)
51,099 107,856
78,700 138,269
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—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

6. FRBLATAHE PROFIT BEFORE TAX
REFNBBRAMMED MG (GTA) T3& The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after
18 - charging/(crediting):
2= —E——F
2013 2012
iirz3 ARMFT AREFT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
BHEWMERAK Cost of properties sold 7,201,640 2,212,941
BN EMEZER Direct operating expenses (including
AR Y (BIEEERIRE) repairs and maintenance) arising on
rental-earning investment properties 3,922 4,084
BHEB EERLERY Direct operating expenses (including
(REHELREEDE rental and depreciation of leasehold
KENE) improvements) arising on
the subleasing business 69,674 -
AR E IR RS 2 PR Cost of property management
service provided 81,140 69,494
e Depreciation 14 55,648 16,454
KEMERARBEHE Changes in fair value of Investment
properties 16 (42,000) (110,000)
FIEIE IR R STV E FE M Changes in fair value of certain other
ERFIBEARBENE payables to a non-controlling shareholder  30(a)(i) - 2,144
1% BAM 3 B Auditors’ remuneration 3,588 2,348
BTIRNAY (TeE Employee benefit expense (excluding
EEHM (HE8)) directors’ remuneration (note 8))
He Wages and salaries 229,223 96,210
RIRS T2 Pension scheme contributions 13,039 9,690
B BE T ECER{LEE  Less: Amount capitalised in properties
under development (148,894) (50,523)
93,368 55,377
MAEMEREBEEBRD Minimum lease payments under
HEMEZEZHE operating leases regarding office
REREFRE premises and leased properties for
the subleasing business 81,318 3,893
BRIEHELENDEDN (Reversal of impairment)/impairment of
CREER),RE completed properties held for sale 21 (1,665) 1,665
AN FRE - e hEHAD Reversal of impairment of prepayments,
JE WK IE By R (B R ] deposits and other receivables (1,000) -
HEWME MENZEERS  Loss on disposal of items of property,
B8 plant and equipment 34 658
WHEMT B A Al e Gain on acquisition of a subsidiary 35(A)() (7,685) -
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7. BEKX 7. FINANCE COSTS
—EB—-=fF —E——4F
2013 2012
AR¥TFT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FMEFRX Interest expense 612,016 488,296
B BARER R Less: Interest capitalised (524,310) (446,247)
87,706 42,055
8. E=EHM 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
HBREBHERGMAR AR TRES ™ Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to
HARBEBRMEHE161EEBECEESH the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
Ban T - on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and Section 161 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as
follows:
—g—-= —E——4F
2013 2012
AR#FIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
5 Fees 60 -
Hib g - Other emoluments:
e REREYFIE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 7,046 6,629
RIBEMAIEAL Performance-related bonuses 13,451 571
RIS E B Pension scheme contributions 73 49
20,570 7,249
20,630 7,249
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8. EEFHM =

(a) BIYFHITES

FRAEXNTBELIFATEST 2
LN

—“F—=%F+=-H=+—8 31 December 2013

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

(Cont’'d)

(a) Independent non-executive
directors

The fees paid to independent
non-executive directors during the year
were as follows:

—E—= —E——%F

2013 2012

AR¥FT AR

RMB’000 RMB’000

REL+ Ms. Sun Hui 20 _
MRANEE St A& Mr. Lin Ru Peng 20 _
mEXEAE Mr. Wong Wai Man 20 _
60 -

I E th B S FE S N AS B LIRS
TEE (ZTE——F: &)
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There were no other emoluments
payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year
(2012: Nil).



501 75 S Y
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F—=%F+=-H=+—8 31 December 2013

8. E?ﬁ@ﬂ(%) 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
(Cont'd)
(b) HIFE=S (b) Executive directors
e BER REHN  RAREEHE
ENFR biAAN H®® wst
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
in kind bonuses contributions Total

AREFT ARETZT AREFT ARBEFZ
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

BZE-2-—=F+-A=1—H Year ended 31 December 2013

EEE

BEE R E Mr. Shum 1,968 4,887 8 6,863
BB e Mr. Guan Jianhui 1,324 1,864 13 3,201
i Mr. Bai Xihong 1,323 2,601 13 3,937
FREE Mr. Li Qiang 962 2,276 13 3,251
IRt K& Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong 962 1,214 13 2,189
HLESRE Mr. Niu Ji Min 507 609 13 1,129
7,046 13,451 73 20,570

e 2Uk REEM  RAEREFE
BNz bFAN Hx mEt

Salaries,

allowances  Performance Pension

and benefits related scheme
in kind bonuses contributions Total

ABBTIL ARETT AREFTT ARETT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

HE-Z——Ft+-A=1—H Year ended 31 December 2012

H5E

SRR E Mr. Shum 1,864 160 4 2,028
B Mr. Guan Jianhui 1,260 108 9 1,377
At E Mr. Bai Xihong 1,278 108 9 1,395
TRkt Mr. Li Qiang 900 78 9 987
=P (9 Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong 895 78 9 982
HERAE Mr. Niu Ji Min 432 39 9 480
6,629 571 49 7,249

FAMBEENEZIRENETAHFIHOL There was no arrangement under which

B (ZE——4F : 4|) o a director waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year. (2012: Nil)
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FWERSHNERES

FRN TR AEAREERENRES
(ZE—ZF: =ZREFR) ZFES5 25 M
BN LIS - R - Fsh— B H N
BREMFESE (ZT—ZF:  MEKES) E
BZHMFBORIMT

—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid individuals during the
year included four directors (2012: three
directors), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of
the remuneration of the remaining one
non-director (2012:

highest paid employees during the year,

two non-directors),

respectively, are as follows:

—E—=F —E—-—4F

2013 2012

AEB¥FT AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R REYA &= Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 933 1,847
RIFEMATEAL Performance-related bonuses 2,036 156
EETEIHER Pension scheme contributions 13 18
2,982 2,021

Fleth—BENZSNIIEES (Z2——_F
WEIIEESE) BEZCHFNEENTARKE
2,000,0017c 2 AR #3,000,0007T °
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The remuneration of the remaining one
(2012:
highest paid employee fell within the band of
RMB2,000,001 to RMB3,000,000.

two non-directors) non-director
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—F—=%F+=-H=+—8 31 December 2013

10.

P8R

o A B 7 A R AN A
BRFFERAESHE LSRG FH
WS - RENEHERRBEARES
RAIEMRD AEEER (RHEHS R
BABRBSEMAST) BEBMETHE
Bt o s B R A N A BB A A AT
FAIRBUA - Lt AN 5 4 7 P S A
B -

B AT S

RIBEPBEDERMENR ([REMEH]) 1807
MIRITER - 2B RIES - AR BRI
REXBHMEEMBHREREFEMGETH
JERM AN B ABER R EGFE -

BREMRE - AR L HBMAR (EER
BIEE17) b REBEPBEAME S EM
B QRIEMAR25%M B L EMSHB

=

EMHE - M EMEFHBROEERME
Migiz E B - ARS8 IAB2.5%
i o

82

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is subject to income tax on an
entity basis on profits arising in or derived
from the jurisdictions in which members
of the Group are domiciled and operate.
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and BVI, the entities of the
Group which incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and BVI are not subject to any income
tax. The Group was not liable for income
tax in Hong Kong as the Group did not have
any assessable income arising in Hong Kong
during the year.

PRC corporate income tax

The PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") in
respect of operations in Mainland China has
been calculated at the applicable tax rate on
the estimated assessable profits for each of
the year, based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

Except for Guangzhou Ruixian, Fogang
Shengxin and Fogang Bairui (as defined in
Note 17), other subsidiaries of the Group
operating in Mainland China are subject to
the PRC corporate income tax rate of 25%.

Corporate income tax for Guangzhou Ruixian,
Fogang Shengxin and Fogang Bairui is levied
on a deemed basis on a rate of 2.5% of their

respective revenue amounts.
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FrEBiBxX (5)
o - 3t 0 E

BE—NANAONFEF—A—BERN(PEAR
HRE T IR EBREITIRGD) R— WA ARF
— A+t RABMCFEAREME i
REREITEOERMAD HEK - £ E
HENEREE T HERAEREFMEN—
P A (BN SH & ¥ % 2 B 1S BURR 7] $0 5 5
Y BREREERARMEREIL) HER
N F 11 (E30% E60%H) R HEF KK+
HIZER - WEBERETEMZETHEAS
EATHITEIE B EM20% 0 B EEE T EER
R -
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10.

—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)
PRC land appreciation tax

According to the requirements of the
Provisional Regulations of the PRC on Land
Appreciation Tax (“LAT") (FF2EARILME +
I AR E 1T 5M0]) effective from 1 January
1994 and the Detailed Implementation
Rules on the Provisional Regulations of the
PRC on LAT (PZEARAME LB EH Y
TEDIEFE4HA]) effective from 27 January
1995, all income from the sale or transfer of
state-owned land use rights and buildings
in the PRC (being the proceeds of sales
of properties less deductible expenditures
including borrowing costs and property
development expenditures) is subject to LAT
at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% of the appreciation of land value with
an exemption provided for property sales of
ordinary residential properties (&3@BIZ % (E
=) if their appreciation values do not exceed
20% of the sum of the total deductible

items.
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—F—=%F+=-H=+—8 31 December 2013

10. FiB%BExX (&) 10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)
FE L EER (&) PRC land appreciation tax (Cont'd)
FRN - NEBRBEEBPBERBEEEERM During the year, the Group estimated and
R E e LI ER Y ELRE - B+ made provision for LAT according to the
HIZEMRBERERBEB R T EARAMK requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax
WREET  MHRSHBEETH T HI%ER s laws and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities
HE T IR E R B ETIRIENEES T are subject to the determination by the tax
Ao authorities upon completion of the property
development projects and the LAT determined
by the tax authorities might be different from
the basis on which the provision for LAT is
calculated.
—E-=F —E——4F
2013 2012
Hiat AREFT AREF T
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
BIER - Current:
R ZEFTIS L PRC CIT 490,815 118,185
THIRED LAT 244,216 123,168
s Deferred 19 (88,831) 26,422
FEREY HEE Total tax charge for the year 646,200 267,775
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—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

10. FIBBIFAxX (8) 10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)
PR EEMEAENGER AN EE @A IB A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable
Y EIEERNERAENH B Y 2 YER to profit before tax using the statutory tax
BEARER (ATEME) BERH X 2 HIRN rate to the tax expense at the effective tax
T rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable
rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the
effective tax rate, are as follows:
—E-=F —E-CF
2013 2012
AR F % AEEFT %
RMB'000 % RMB’000 %
B B¢ BB Profit before tax 1,620,130 621,423
BRHRBEERE Tax at the PRC statutory tax rate
AEZRE 405,033 25.0 155,356 25.0
EFRATRE Effect of different income tax regimes
FERGIE s & of certain companies 2,822 0.2 15 -
BEAB A Income not subject to tax (1,921) (0.1) - -
RAIF 7 S H Expenses not deductible for tax 14,702 0.9 14,359 2.3
+ BB B Provision for LAT 244,216 15.1 123,168 19.8
TiEER 2 Tax effect of LAT
k% (61,054) (3.8) (30,792) (5.0)
KR FHIBEE Tax losses not recognised 14,483 0.9 3,632 0.6
[EEE N RER Profits and losses attributable to
associates (593) - (1) -
BB ARADEFAE  Withholding taxes on undistributed
Z AT profits of the subsidiaries in the PRC 28,512 1.8 2,038 0.3
BAREE7BERHEFE  Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate
ZBIES 646,200 40.0 267,775 43.0
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—F—=%F+=-H=+—8 31 December 2013

11. NDEEE AESRE 11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
HE —_ET—=%1+_-_A=+—HIFE The consolidated profit attributable to
RARERBAEGEANBEEERA owners of the Company for the year
R #15913,000 (ZZE——F: AREK ended 31 December 2013 includes a loss
1.844.0007T) * ZBHIBEDHI AR A 7 H B of RMB15,913,000 (2012: RMB1,844,000)
‘& (Mizk34) - which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (note 34).
12. RE 12. DIVIDENDS

N E—=FNANBEZE—Z=ZF1AT+
NEARREASREESTRET S
TR A R #442,428,0007T K& 497028 & >
gT (& R4 A R #431,485,0007T) K A%
B BHREBEEAETHERARANKE
HEIEH -

EEeER KRB E_ET—=f+-A=+
—BIEFERNRERESRARE10.94%
(ZE——F : 8|&) -

AEENEZZRAREAGTARRRRRNE
JERCRBFERE LHE - TRMEE -

86

On 6 June 2013 and 16 September
2013, dividends of RMB442,428,000 and
approximately US$70.2 million (equivalent
to RMB431,485,000 approximately) were
respectively declared by the Company out
of its distributable reserves to Asiaciti. Such
dividends were subsequently used to set off
the current accounts with Asiaciti.

The board of directors recommended the
payment of a final dividend of RMB10.94
cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2013 (2012: Nil).

The proposed final dividend for the year is
subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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—“F—=%F+=-H=+—8 31 December 2013

13. ARAEBERZFEAEMLESK 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
P ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY
FEEREBFIBEBEARAANG LT @mEZRE The calculation of basic earnings per share is
BEAEMLABREFEANLSZEITRGD A IE based on the profit attributable to ordinary
15 #01,315,822,0008% (= & — = £ : equity holders of the Company and the
1,292,220,0000%) 51 & - weighted average number of shares of
1,315,822,000 (2012: 1,292,220,000) in issue
during the year.
BREARBFIEZ T SEFTE - The calculation of basic earnings per share is
based on:
—EB—=fF —E——4F
2013 2012
AR¥FT AT
RMB’000 RMB’000
27 Earnings
RARIEBEDEE AEN Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
FE - AEsTEERERETF]  of the Company, used in the basic earnings
per share calculation 987,022 362,916

HE-_Z—=FK-_ZT——F+-_A=+—
BEFEEZEITROMNMBEFLFHHTIRER
B3 1T A1,292,220,000/ 51 & - 10
R_E—=ZF+_A+—BimE o
NETMBBERNDEERBETERETH
1,292,219,799 iz n (1 EAR{L317]) (M6
32(a)) EREZHRBAEAANEG BEITEIN ©

87

The weighted average numbers of shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December
2013 and 2012 are based on the assumption
that 1,292,220,000 shares were in issue
as if the 1,292,219,799 shares issued by
capitalisation of share premium account
for allotment and issue to Asiaciti on 11
December 2013 (the "Capitalisation Issue”)
(note 32(a)) were outstanding throughout the
entire periods presented.
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—F—=%F+=-H=+—8 31 December 2013

13. XA EEREFAEAEBLEER

13.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

B (& ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (Cont'd)
EBERAINFEF I Weighted average number of ordinary
shares
—E—= —E—-—4F
2013 2012
Fhig FHE
‘000 ‘000
RIBEE R EEITHE BITAR D Shares issued pursuant to Capitalisation Issue 1,292,220 1,292,220
RZZE—=F+_"A+—HIEE Effect of shares issued upon global offering
IR ERITIRMDH T E on 11 December 2013 23,602 -
o E IR B AR T B Weighted average number of ordinary shares 1,315,822 1,292,220

HRAEETEHE_T—=FK_F—=
T A=+t BLEFEYEDEHITNETE
SELBEAR - W ERBEEMERZSE
ENEBRERZFELAE -
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No adjustment has been made to the basic
earnings per share amounts presented for the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012
in respect of a dilution as the Group had
no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years.
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—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

14. Y¥  BERRE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT
AEE Group

HELHER BENE &R %ER

B¥ kB BOERRE nE  HBIE st
Furniture,
Leasehold  Leasehold fixtures

land and improve-  and office Motor Construction
buildings ments  equipment vehicles in progress Total

ARRTR ARETT ARBEFZ ARETT AREFZ ARETZ
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

“ZE-=%+=-A=+-H 31December 2013

KA Cost;
RZZ—=%—-F—H At 1 January 2013 26,587 128,754 60,951 29,356 248,762 494,410
NE Additions - 203,277 13,447 6 43,597 260,327
HEWBATR (#136)  Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) - - (4,499) (122) - (4,621)
HE Disposals - (1,525) (1,498) (979) - (4,002)
b Transfer - 210,225 - - (210,225) -
WZE—=%1+_A At 31 December 2013
=t+-H 26,587 540,731 68,401 28,261 82,134 746,114
ZEE Accumulated depreciation:
RZE-—=F—-F—H At 1 January 2013 5,488 14,699 28,134 13,153 - 61,474
TEEHHEAHN Depreciation provided during
FE the year 189 41,879 10,205 3,375 - 55,648
HEWBAT (#1736)  Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) - - (1,275) (35) - (1,310)
HE Disposals - (2,291) (1,124) (89) - (3,504)
RZF-=F+=f At 31 December 2013
=t+-H 5,677 54,287 35,940 16,404 - 112,308
REFE Net carrying amount: 20,910 486,444 32,461 11,857 82,134 633,806
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—E—=%F+=-F=+—H 31 December 2013

14. Y% BERSEE &) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)
r&E® (8B) Group (Cont'd)

etk  HEWE KW RER

¥ £E  BRTHRE RE O ERIE st
Furniture,
Leasehold Leasehold fixtures

land and improve- and office Motor  Construction
buildings ments  equipment vehicles in progress Total

NERTL  ARETLT ARETT ARETLT ARETT ARETL
RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

“E--#+=-A=+-H 31 December 2012

A Cost;
RZE——%—-F—H At 1 January 2012 26,587 17,523 46,323 24,421 - 114,854
NE Additions - 6,137 8,020 3,634 - 17,791
WEmB AR Acquisition of subsidiaries
(3504 i) (note 35(A)(ii)) - 105,094 6,670 2,748 248,762 363,274
HE Disposals - - (62) (1,447) - (1,509)
WZE—_%+_R At 31 December 2012
=1+-A 26,587 128,754 60,951 29,356 248,762 494,410
ZEE Accumulated depreciation:
RZE-——F—-F—H At 1 January 2012 3,311 11,958 18,225 8,487 - 41,981
REEHREDAENTE  Depreciation provided during
the year 2,177 2,741 7,872 3,664 - 16,454
WEMB AR Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Hi#350A)i) (note 35(A)(ii)) - - 2,091 1733 - 3,824
HE Disposals - - (54) (731) - (785)
WZE——%+_R At 31 December 2012
=1+-A 5,488 14,699 28,134 13,153 - 61,474
RRFE Net carrying amount: 21,099 114,055 32,817 16,203 248,762 432,936
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—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

14. PROPERTY,
EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

PLANT AND

ZNAL Company
HE
Motor
vehicles
ARETFT
RMB’000
—E-=F+=A=+—H 31 December 2013
B Cost:
W_E—=F—H—H At 1 January 2013 493
HeE Disposals (13)
N-ZE—=F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2013 480
REIE - Accumulated depreciation:
W_ZT—=F—HF—H At 1 January 2013 118
AEEHECBENITE Depreciation provided during the year 1
= Disposals -
RZE—=F+_"A=+—H At 31 December 2013 119
AREFEE - Net carrying amount: 361
—E-—_—_F%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2012
B Cost:
W-_Z——F—H—H At 1 January 2012 498
He Disposals (5)
RZE——_F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2012 493
ZEHIE - Accumulated depreciation:
R-_ZE——F—H—H At 1 January 2012 24
REEHEDBRENITE Depreciation provided during the year 95
& Disposals (M)
RZE——F+=A=+—H At 31 December 2012 118
RRIEFAE Net carrying amount: 375
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—F—=%F+=-H=+—8 31 December 2013

15. AT EFE

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

—EB—-=fF —E——4F

2013 2012

ARETFT AR F T

RMB’000 RMB’000

REVIRRH S5 Carrying amount at beginning of year 1,494,902 1,629,130
FERNE Additions during the year 698,229 228,791
W BE BT A 7 (F15235(B)(i) ~ (ii)) Acquisition of subsidiaries (notes 35(B)(i), (ii) 306,263 -
B SR I R Transferred to properties under development (358,039) (363,019)
NERNEESE Carrying amount at end of year 2,141,355 1,494,902
B OREE S Less: Current portion (755,881) (265,813)
IEMENE Non-current portion 1,385,474 1,229,089

HELwRTFRA BIRERPHEERS -
Hig THRSHAMS - i THRAR - &R
BRERTDYE -

R-ZE—=F+-"A=+—H FHELEHA
B84 5 AR #25,300,000T (— & — — 4 :
AR#228,640,0007T) MAE TASEHEH
MEEERT  UERGETASEENRITER
(FtzE31(c)) ©
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The leasehold land is situated in Mainland
China and is held under a long term
lease, construction on which has not yet
commenced. Balances will be transferred
to properties under development when
construction commences.

Certain parcels of the Group’s leasehold
land with an aggregate carrying amount
of approximately RMB25,300,000 as at 31
December 2013 (2012: RMB228,640,000)
have been pledged to secure bank loans
granted to the Group (note 31(c)).
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16. REWE

—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

—EB-=fF —E——4F

2013 2012

Hiat AR¥TFT AREFIT

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

REVRRE 5 Carrying amount at beginning of year 1,540,000 1,430,000
AN BEAZRMEFNE Net gain from a fair value adjustment 5 42,000 110,000
NERNEESE Carrying amount at end of year 1,582,000 1,540,000

REBZREMEMNRFE AR B iZ+ HHE
ERE REVETERBELHELTHME
ETE=7 EZHBENGEMBEHREM
F£39(a) °

R-ZE—=F+-"A=+—H KEFAZKR
BEYEBBYIEEBREXMEMAREER
TRERAAEHNHERAR,582,000,000
T (ZE — = F: AR %1,540,000,000
TL) c ARBMKBESFREEIRE—F
SNEBMLERT A B B B NS B Y E 1T INER
B BEZERBEMBANG BE BUM
NREHEFTERENKE - REE 2 HBRER
MR E MEITHER EZGEMTE
ERZIMHEELERETHN RZT—=F
E—T——F+-A=1+—8 xEEZE&
EYEEERAT - UIERTFAEENRTT
ERREAMER (H:E31(0) °
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The Group's investment properties are situated
in Mainland China and held under medium
term. The investment properties are mainly
leased to third parties under operating lease
arrangements, further details of which are
included in note 39(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued
on 31 December 2013 at RMB1,582,000,000
(2012: RMB1,540,000,000) by DTZ Debenham
Tie Leung Limited, an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers. Each year, the
Group’s chief financial officer decide to appoint
which external valuer to be responsible for the
external valuations of the Group's properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The
Group's chief financial officer have discussions
with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results when the valuation
is performed for financial reporting. At 31
December 2013 and 2012, the investment
properties of the Group were pledged to secure
the bank loans and other borrowings granted to
the Group (note 31(c)).
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—F—=%F+=-H=+—8 31 December 2013

16. REWE (B 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)
DNREEER Fair value hierarchy

RZF-—=FR-ZF-—ZF+ZA=1—
A AKRENYERENAABERAEX
TR BB ARETE (B38) -

RAFEEN - S1EREEMEEAL
E{EE R AR ED S EE AR
HH3E -

BREMENHENRAERLEZALL2RA
FAtm Al E L M SHE BB M ERK

BREMEGHEMSNEABABBENEE
MEHINWAT

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, fair
values of the Group's investment properties
were measured using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3).

During the year, there were no transfers of
fair value measurements between Level 1 and
Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

The valuations of investment properties
were arrived at with the adoption of Direct
Comparison Method by making reference to
the comparable sale prices in the relevant
locality.

Below is a summary of the range of significant
input to the valuation of investment
properties:

BEARTER &E Significant Range
BAHE (L) unobservable input (weighted average)

T8  THREMHEEX (BEAK 76,000-99,000 Retail  Market unit sale rate (RMB/sq.m) 76,000-99,000
AEET) (40,000-80,000) (40,000-80,000)

Wn MREMEER (BEAK 28,000-33,000 Office  Market unit sale rate (RMB/sq.m) 28,000-33,000
AE®T) (27,500) (27,500)

BE  mEBEUHER (BHESN) 330,000-400,000 Car  Market unit sale rate 330,000-400,000
(400,000) Parking  (Per one space) (400,000)
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17. RMIB A BINERE

AT

—“F—=%F+=-H=+—8 31 December 2013

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company
—E—= —E—-—4F
2013 2012
AREFT ABRETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

Investments in subsidiaries*

FARRRIRBEER RSB AN ER
MEMKBAG ZREDNAARKE
1,356,235,000c (Z T — = F: AR ¥
922,852,0007t) & A K %116,133,0007C
—=——F: AR%¥117,867,0007T) * T3
SR 28 AREREERE -
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The amounts due from and to subsidiaries
included in the Company’s current assets and
current liabilities of RMB1,356,235,000 (2012:
RMB922,852,000) and RMB116,133,000
(2012: RMB117,867,000), respectively, are
unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on
demand.
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—F—=%F+=-H=+—8 31 December 2013

17. RMIBARINERE (&) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont’'d)
AT (8B) Company (Cont'd)
B AR ZFBWT : Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:
v UNG 2PN L
ERBaot
BB/ RIR BR{7/HM  Percentage of equity
ZENMER A BRANEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
£ establishment and registered B BiE TEER
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BHEBEBERAR (Wita) RBRARKEE 3ET 100 - REER
Wisdom Sharp Investments Limited (note (a)) —ZEZF Us$3 Investment holding
=R=+=H
BVI

22 March 2006

Million Sensor Management Limited (#/i#(a) RE4#HBRES (E - 100 ®REER
Million Sensor Management Limited (note (a)) —EZ+% Us$1 Investment holding
ER=-FHE

BVI
25 May 2007

Grand Highway International Ltd. (/@)  RB#RRES (E - 100 ®REER

Grand Highway International Ltd. (note (3)) —ZEE+ENA+=H US$1 Investment holding
BVI

13 September 2007

Venus Tower Limited (#/7#(a)) RBERRHE E3 - 100 REZER
Venus Tower Limited (note (a)) “ERLE Us$1 Investment holding
NAZt—H
BVI

21 September 2007
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—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

17. RIBATMIKRE (&) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Cont'd)

AnE () Company (Cont'd)

ERAEEAEE
BEEH
FMKL,/ RILK 2817 /8M  Percentage of equity
BENBERAH REHNEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
g establishment and registered BE B TEER
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
£% (B8) 8RBEMAA (%)) (Hita) R 900,00077C - 100 REER
Wah Tai (H.K.) Development Limited =% HK$900,000 Investment holding
("Wah Tai") (note (a)) TA-+NRH
Hong Kong
28 May 1992
BERRREBRAR ([HERARE]) B 10,0007 - 100 REEMR
(Hiit@) —ZZ% HK$10,000 Investment holding
Hong Kong Times Investments Limited “AZfmA
("Hong Kong Times Investments”) Hong Kong
(note (a) 24 March 2000
BEBLERRERERLA ([£ERE]) B 10,0007 7T - 100 REER
(Wiita) —ZZTFETANA HK$10,000 Investment holding
Steelmine Minerals (H.K.) Development Hong Kong
Limited (“Steelmine Minerals”) (note (a)) 4 October 2000
BRRERRAR ([24]) 'R 61,782,691 7T - 100 REZK
(Hiita) —AN=F HK$61,782,691 Investment holding
Profit City Investment Limited MAZ+=H
("Profit City") (note (a)) Hong Kong
23 April 1992
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—F—=%F+=-H=+—8 31 December 2013

17. AMBRASIHNKRE (&) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)
AnF () Company (Cont'd)
LNGIE 2SN 3
BHEEDL
FMKL,/ RILK 2817 /8M  Percentage of equity
BENBERAH REHNEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
g establishment and registered BE B TEER
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BENTRAMEREARAR ((RREE]) 8/ PEA 83,000,000% T - 100 HEFAERREER
Guangzhou Times Property Group Co., Ltd.  ZEZ—FHANH US$83,000,000 Property development
("Times Group”) PRC/Mainland China and investment holding
9 May 2001
ENTRREXHEREBRAF R /R E N ARE - 100 HEZR
((BROERE ) (i) ZZERE=ATHEA 250,000,0007T Investment holding
Guangzhou Times Enterprise Real PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB250,000,000
Estate Investment Co., Ltd. 17 March 2005
(“Times Real Estate”) (note (a))
BNDERBEREBRAT R/ R E N ARE - 100 MERERREER
(TBMEE ) (W) “TTREMA=FH 120,000,000 Property development
Guangzhou Times Shengyu PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB120,000,000 and investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd. 30 April 2005
("Guangzhou Shengyu”) (note (a))
ERERBEERHMEREERAR R /R EN ARE - 100 #MEFE
(IBRBE]) (W) ZEERERATAA 80,000,0007¢ Property development
Guangdong Times Shengyu Real PRC/Mainland China RMB80,000,000
Estate Development Co., Ltd. 19 June 2006

("Guangdong Shengyu”) (note (a))
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—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Cont'd)

17. RBRARINIKRE (&) 17.

ARE () Company (Cont'd)

LNGIE 2SN 3
BHEEDL
FMKL,/ RILK 2817 /8M  Percentage of equity
BENBERAH RANEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
g establishment and registered BE B TEER
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
HEPRELREBRRA ([HEPIK]) hEl /R E A AR - 100 WERE
(Hiita) ZTTRE 10,000,0007T Property development
Zhuhai Zhongzhu Century =A=+NH RMB 10,000,000
Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
("Zhuhai Zhongzhu") (note (a)) 28 March 2006
BFREFRAERAR ((HEEF]) hEl /Rl IN:H: - 100 MERE
(Wita) “ZZ+FE-A+NH 5,000,0007T Property development
Fogang Guanheng Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000
("Fogang Guanheng”) (note (a)) 19 January 2007
BLTHRRERHEERERAR R/ R ARE - 100 #MERH
([BmRE]) (Hita) e a3 32,000,0007C Property development
Foshan Yudonglong Real —-A=+=R RMB32,000,000
Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
(“Foshan Yudonglong”) (note (a)) 22 January 2002
BNTREFUWEERAR (BMEE]) hE /R R ARE - 100 #MERH
(Hiita) —NWNBEEAEH 364,307,7507C Property development
Guangzhou Minhua Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB364,307,750
("Guangzhou Minhua") (note (a)) 5 April 1994
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—_=F—

=F+=HA=+—H 31 December 2013

17. RMEBARNRE (&) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)
AnF () Company (Cont'd)
ERAEEAEE
BEEH
FMKL,/ RILK 2817 /8M  Percentage of equity
BENBERAH REHNEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
g establishment and registered BE B TEER
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BRERKEERTRARAR ((HHEZMR) H8/ HERL AR#3,000,0007T - 100 SE&EEDRKE
(Hiita) —EE+FNAT=R RMB3,000,000 Landscape virescence and
Fogang Shengxin Water and PRC/Mainland China property decoration
Electricity Garden Engineering Co., Ltd. 13 September 2007
("Fogang Shengxin”) (note (a))
BERmRESH ITRERAR ([HRHHk]) hE/hERL AR ¥3,000,0007C - 100 MEEE
(Wita) ZTTLH RMB3,000,000 Property decoration
Fogang Bairui Decoration NAZTNH
Engineering Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
("Fogang Bairui") (note (a)) 28 September 2007
fmERHEEZERAR ([RUsiE]) B/ RERM AR® - 100 WERE
(Wiita) “TTtFRA+AA 10,000,0007T Property development
Zhongshan Times Kaixuan Asset Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB 10,000,000
("Zhongshan Kaixuan”) (note (a)) 15 May 2007
BLUTEERREERHEREERAA hEl/ REl A ARE - 100 #EFRE
(MhLmBEE]) (Hita) “ZTLELARA 30,000,0007¢ Property development
Foshan Nanhai Times PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000
Shengyu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 6 July 2007

("Foshan Nanhai Shengyu”) (note (a))
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—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

17. RMEBARNRE (57) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)
AnE () Company (Cont'd)
LNGIE 2SN 3
BEEH
FMKL,/ RILK 2817 /8M  Percentage of equity
BENBERAH RANEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
g establishment and registered BE B TEER
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BRBRHERZERLR ((HREHE]) hEl /R E A AR% - 100 WERE
(Hiita) “ZTME 30,000,0007T Property development
Fogang Times Real Estate =A=1—H RMB30,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
("Fogang Real Estate”) (note (a)) 31 March 2004
ENRMEHEREERAR REl /R E A AR% - 100 W%HEE
(TBMER]) (Hi#a) —“N=F 111,075,8007T Property leasing
Guangzhou Donghe Real Estate +-A=1t—-H RMB111,075,800
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
("Guangzhou Donghe”) (note (a)) 31 December 1993
BMTHREEMRICERAR ([BMHE]) &/ DERXKG AR #3,500,0007C - 100 SE&L
(Wiita) “TTt+5-RAAA RMB3,500,000 Landscape architecture
Guangzhou Ruixian Landscaping Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
("Guangzhou Ruixian") (note (a)) 5 January 2007
HETRRESREBRAR ([HELL]) B/ PENH ARE - 100 #MEFE
(Hiita) ZEELFLA+H 50,000,0007C Property development
Zhuhai Times Fengzhuo Investment Co., Ltd.  PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000

("Zhuhai Fengzhuo”) (note (a))

11 July 2007
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—F—=%F+=-H=+—8 31 December 2013

17. RBRATINIKRE (&)

KT (&)

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Cont'd)

Company (Cont'd)

ESNGE 2N
REEDM

FMKL,/ RILK 2817 /8M  Percentage of equity
BENBERAH REHNEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
g establishment and registered BE B TEER
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
B KBREBRRR ([FRRKEE]) REl /R E A AR® - 100 WERE
(Hiita) “ZZ\F-A+-H 10,000,0007T Property development
Fogang Times Yongsheng PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000
Investment Co., Ltd. 11 January 2008
("Fogang Yongsheng") (note (a))
BEPEEZEREERA ([HEASE]) e /R AR® - 100 HxFE
(Hiita) ZTTLH 8,000,0007T Property development
Fogang Zhongyi Asset Development +-A-thB RMBS8,000,000
Limited Liability Company PRC/Mainland China
("Fogang Zhongyi") (note (a)) 29 December 2007
BLT=KRERHEERBRAA hEl /Rl ARE - 100 MERE
(THRILE ) (K@) —ZTR4/\AWA 48,000,0007T Property development
Foshan Sanshui Yuhua Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB48,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. 4 August 2005
("Foshan Yuhua") (note (a))
BNHERDEERERAA e/ HER ARH - 100 HxER
([BRMEER]) (W) —NNE 5,500,0007T Property management
Guangzhou Times Property +ZA+/\B RMBS5,500,000

Management Co., Ltd.

("Times Property Management”) (note (a))

PRC/Mainland China
18 December 1998
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—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

17. REBATWRE (@) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)
AnE () Company (Cont'd)
LNGIE 2SN 3
BEEH
FMKL,/ RILK 2817 /8M  Percentage of equity
BENBERAH RANEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
g establishment and registered BE B TEER
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BMNERERREBERRA ([HREE]) hEl /R E A ARE - 70 MERE
(Hiita) “TTNFtA+=H 10,010,0007T Property development
Guangzhou Times Hengde PRC/Mainland China RMB 10,010,000
Investment Co., Ltd. 13 July 2009
("Times Hengde") (note (a))
BNTRRRGEAERAR ([BMXG]) B/ FEAY AR® - 100 HEZR
(Hiita) “ZTNERAZH 10,010,000 Investment holding
Guangzhou Times Tianyi PRC/Mainland China RMB10,010,000
Consulting Co., Ltd. 2 June 2009
("Guangzhou Tianyi") (note (a))
BNTEIREFRAR ([EMER]) hEl /R E A AR® - 100 WERE
(Wiita) ZTTNE 11,000,0007T Property development
Guangzhou Huaya Investment Co., Ltd. NA=Z+—H RMB 11,000,000
("Guangzhou Huaya") (note (a)) PRC/Mainland China
31 August 2009
BREEEREZAREERAR hEl /R E A AR® - 100 EEeX
(TBERIER ) (Hit(a) 2R 100,0007C Dormant
Fogang Xinlong Investment ~AZtTER RMB100,000
Consulting Services Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
("Fogang Xinlong”) (note (a)) 27 June 2007
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—F—=%F+=-H=+—8 31 December 2013

17. RMEBARNRE (&) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)
AL (8) Company (Cont'd)
LNGIE 2SN 3
BEEH
FMKL,/ RILK 2817 /8M  Percentage of equity
BENBERAH RANEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
4% establishment and registered BE B TEXER
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BREEEREZARBEERAR hEl /R E A ARE - 100 EEEx
(TRBE] (Hita) “ERLFEAATLA 100,0007C Dormant
Fogang Runxin Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000
Consulting Services Co., Ltd. 17 September 2007
("Fogang Runxin”) (note (a))
BNTRRERREERAR ([BEMNER]) B/ +EAM AR® - 100 WERE
(Hiita)* —Z-ZF-A+WA 35,000,0007C Property development
Guangzhou Times Hongtai PRC/Mainland China RMB35,000,000
Investment Co., Ltd. 14 January 2010
("Guangzhou Hongtai") (note (a))*
BNTERREFRAR ([EMEH]) hEl /R E A AR% - 100 WERE
(Wiita) ZTTNE 10,000,0007T Property development
Guangzhou Fujie Investment Co., Ltd. +R=++tA RMB 10,000,000
("Guangzhou Fujie") (note (a)) PRC/Mainland China
27 October 2009
BFEMARREGRAR ([FRER]) hEl /R E A AR® - 100 WERE
(Hi#ta) “2-ZF-A+H 30,000,0007C Property development
Qingyuan Rongjing Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000

("Qingyuan Rongjing") (note (a))

10 February 2010
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—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Cont'd)

Company (Cont'd)

LNGIE 2SN 3
BEEH
FMKL,/ RILK 2817 /8M  Percentage of equity
BENBERAH RANEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
g establishment and registered BE B TEER
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BFEMEERHERERA (FEZ®E]) REl /R E A AR - 100 WERE
(Hiita) “Z-Z£=-ATCH 5,000,0007T Property development
Qingyuan Xilong Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. 12 March 2010
("Qingyuan Xilong") (note (a))
R EMEHEREBRAR hEl /R E A AR® - 100 WERE
(T LERE ) (Hit(a) ZZZERATAR 45,000,0007T Property development
Zhongshan Wanlian Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB45,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. 19 June 2007
("Zhongshan Wanlian”) (note (a))
RITAEEHEREBRAA hE /R E A AR® - 100 WERE
(TR L) (Hidta) ¢ —Z-Z2£-A+H 10,000,0007T Property development
Zhongshan Tianyue Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB 10,000,000
Investment Co., Ltd. 10 March 2010
("Zhongshan Tianyue") (note (a))*
BNTHREREGRAR ([EMEE]) hEl /R E A ARH - 70 REAER
(Hi#ta) —T-ZFLAN\H 10,010,0007 Investment holding
Guangzhou Junbao Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB10,010,000

("Guangzhou Junbao") (note (a))

8 July 2010
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—F—=%F+=-H=+—8 31 December 2013

17. RBRATINIKRE (&)

KT (&)

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Cont'd)

Company (Cont'd)

LNGIE 2SN 3
BEEH
FMKL,/ RILK 2817 /8M  Percentage of equity
BENBERAH RANEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
4% establishment and registered BE B TEER
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BNTEREZERAR ([BMER]) hEl /R E A ARE - 0 EEEx
(K@) —E-%F 1,000,0007T Dormant
Guangzhou Haorong Trading Co., Ltd. +R=+-8 RMB1,000,000
("Guangzhou Haorong") (note (a)) PRC/Mainland China
21 October 2010
EMRABEERAR ([EMARA]) hEl /R E A AR® - 70 MERE
(Hiita) “Z-ZF+A+HA 50,000,0007C Property development
Guangzhou Tianlang Trading Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000
("Guangzhou Tianlang”) (note (a)) 15 July 2010
BN EBRARNERRAR RE /R E N ARE - 9 MERE
(TEMmE]) (Hita) — A= /\AKRE 350,000,0007C Property development
Guangzhou Panyu Nanying PRC/Mainland China RMB350,000,000
Property Co., Ltd. 6 August 1992
("Guangzhou Nanying") (note (a))*
BMNTRAKEREBRAR hE /R E N AR® - 100 HEZR
(TBMXZE]) (Hiita) —T—F 11,000,0007T Investment holding
Guangzhou Times Yongtai ~NAZtTZH RMB11,000,000

Investment Co., Ltd.
("Guangzhou Yongtai”) (note (a))

PRC/Mainland China
22 June 2011
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B 35 Sk B
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Cont'd)

Company (Cont'd)

LNGIE 2SN 3
BEEH
FMKL,/ RILK 2817 /8M  Percentage of equity
BENBERAH RANEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
g establishment and registered BE B TEER
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BMTRARMARAR (BMRAL) @@/ &k ARM - 100 L
(Wita) “T-T4)\A=H 51,000,0007C Property development
Guangzhou Tianhe Construction PRC/Mainland China RMB51,000,000
Material Co., Ltd. 3 August 2010
("Guangzhou Tianhe") (note (a))
BNTEHEZERAR ([EMEH)) REl /R E A ARH - 100 EEgX
(K@) —E——F 10,000,0007T Dormant
Guangzhou Fengdu Trading Co., Ltd. +—-A=t-H RMB 10,000,000
("Guangzhou Fengdu”) (note (a)) PRC/Mainland China
21 November 2011
BNTEREZERAR ([EMEHk]) hE /R E A AR® - 100 HEZR
(Hiita) —T——fF 10,000,000 Investment holding
Guangzhou Zhuorui Trading Co., Ltd. +-A=t-H RMB 10,000,000
("Guangzhou Zhuorui") (note (a)) PRC/Mainland China
21 November 2011
BNTRRERREBRAA hEl /R E A ARH - 100 WERE
(TBMER]) (Hia) —Z-Z%£+A=H 10,000,0007T Property development
Guangzhou Times Zichen PRC/Mainland China RMB 10,000,000
Investment Co., Ltd. 3 July 2012

("Guangzhou Zichen") (note (a))
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—F—=%F+=-H=+—8 31 December 2013

17. RBRATINIKRE (&)

KT (&)

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Cont'd)

Company (Cont'd)

ESNGE 2N
REEDM

FMKL,/ RILK 2817 /8M  Percentage of equity
BENBERAH REHNEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
g establishment and registered BE B TEER
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
EREEEXERERLA ([EREE]) e /R AR® - 100 HxFE
(Hiita) —AWN\RERATAE 42,300,0007T Property development
Guangdong Guangchang Industrial PRC/Mainland China RMB42,300,000
Development Co., Ltd. 19 June 1985
("Guangdong Guangchang”) (note (a))
HARERMEREARAR hEl /Rl ARE - 100 MERE
(BRERE]) (Hia) —ZT R ANA 43,800,0007T Property development
Zhuhai Jingrun Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB43,800,000
Development Co., Ltd. 4 June 2007
("Zhuhai Jingrun”) (note (a))
HEMEERHEREERAR e/ R AR® - 100 HxFE
(BRBER]) (HiHa) “Z-Z4+-AZH 30,000,0007¢ Property development
Zhuhai Jiayu Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. 2 November 2012
("Zhuhai Jiayu") (note (a))*
KETBEBEHEREERAF hEl /Rl ARE - 100 MERE
(THRBBIE]) (i) S N = 40,000,0007¢ Property development
Zhuhai Shenghui Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB40,000,000

Development Co., Ltd.
("Zhuhai Shenghui”) (note (a))

6 December 2012
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—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Cont'd)

Company (Cont'd)

ESNGE 2N
REEDM

FMKL,/ RILK 2817 /8M  Percentage of equity
BENBERAH RANEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
g establishment and registered BE B TEER
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
EOHRERMERSERAT B/ PER AR - 100 DEEE
([RAWBRA]) (HiE) “ZE-FNA=1H 50,000,0007T Property development
Changsha Meiguiyuan Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. 30 September 2002
("Changsha Meiguiyuan”) (note (a))
AT EREFRAR hEl /R E A ARE - 100 HEZR
(DRIN& B ) (Hata) —TE-F-AAH 10,000,000 Investment holding
Shenzhen Jinhaidi Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB 10,000,000
(“Shenzhen Jinhaidi") (note (a)) 9 February 2002
BUTEENREREBRAR RE /R E N AR® - 100 HEZR
(TSN ) (WitE) —2-% 2,200,0007T Investment holding
Foshan Jiefengli Investment Planning Co., Ltd.  +—A+H&R RMB2,200,000
(“Foshan Jiefengli”) (note (a)) PRC/Mainland China
15 November 2010
BUTRRKTREBRAR hE /R E N AR® - 100 HEZR
(TBeILAKT ]) (Hita@) -z 35,000,0007¢ Investment holding
Foshan Times Yongheng Investment Co., Ltd. ~ \AZ+=H RMB35,000,000

("Foshan Yongheng") (note (a))

PRC/Mainland China
22 August 2012
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17. RBRATINIKRE (&)

KT (&)

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)

Company (Cont'd)

ESNGE 2N
REEDM

FMKL,/ RILK 2817 /8M  Percentage of equity
BENBERAH RANEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
g establishment and registered BE B TEER
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BN EEREERARD o/ A AR - 100 PEREREE
(TBRMER]) (/5/7;&’(5)) —ZZ-£RATH 30,000,0007¢ Property leasing and
Guangzhou Zhide Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 management
Management Co., Ltd. 10 May 2001
("Guangzhou Zhide") (note (a))
BT EEEENEERER, hEl /R E A AR® - 100 W%ER
(IZBER]) (Hi#a) —T——F 5,000,0007C Property management
Foshan Zh|de Zhengxing Property MA=+/\H RMB5,000,000
Management Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
("Zhide Zhengxing”) (note (a)) 28 April 2011
BN EEEEERAR ([ZEEE] hEl /R E A AR% - 100 EEER
(Wiita) “EENFNA=TH 500,0007T Hotel management
Guangzhou Zhide Hotel Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000
(“Zhide Hotel") (note (a)) 30 September 2009
BNTEERREEF(LEER] RE /R E N ARE - 100 DXBERERE
(T2ERE]) (Hita) S K3 10,100,0007T Property leasing and
Guangzhou Zhide Technology Business NA=1t—H RMB 10,100,000 management

Incubator Co., Ltd.
(“Zhide Technology”) (note (a))

PRC/Mainland China
31 August 2009
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—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

17. RBRARINEKRE (&) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)
ARE () Company (Cont'd)
v UNGE 2PN
ERE
FMKL,/ RILK 2817 /8M  Percentage of equity
ZENMERAH RAHEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
4% establishment and registered BE B TEXER
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
EBMTREEEH*ERRBERAA HE /R ER ARE - 55 MEHERER
([BEMEEE]) (Hita) —2-%F 30,000,0007T Property leasing and
Guangzhou Guangdechang Commercial ZR-+&H RMB30,000,000 management
Management Service Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
("Guangzhou Guangdechang”) (note (a)) 25 March 2010
KEEERMERERRAR HE/HER AR - 100 #ERE
(IKBAR]) (Hia) —E——%=At/\H 5,000,0007C Property development
Zhuhai Guoji Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000
Development Co., Ltd. 18 March 2011
("Zhuhai Guoji") (note (a))
KETIMREERWERERB AT HE/HER AR - 51 WERE
(I%E2E]) (Hita) —NZE+ANE 1,000,0007¢ Property development
Zhuhai Doumen District Jinwu PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 9 July 1992

("Zhuhai Jinwu") (note (a))
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17. RBRATINIKRE (&)

KT (&)

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Cont'd)

Company (Cont'd)

ESNGE 2N
REEDM

FMKL,/ RILK 2817 /8M  Percentage of equity
BENBERAH REHNEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
g establishment and registered BE B TEER
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
BNHRENEERERAR e/ R AR® - 70 MEER
(TEMXH]) (Hidta) —E-TF\A=1H 1,000,0007¢ Property management
Guangzhou Tiansi Property PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000
Management Co., Ltd. 30 August 2010
("Guangzhou Tiansi") (note (a))
BLTHREXRERRAR hEl /Rl AR - 100 REER
(T ILZERER]) (i) —Z-%2F 6,600,0007T Investment holding
Foshan Meigui Huaye +—A+aA RMB6,600,000
Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
("Foshan Meigui Huaye") (note (a)) 15 November 2010
BLIEEREREBR AT e/ R AR% - 100 HEZRK
(TEILBIRE ) (Hi#6) —Z-%F 4,400,000 Investment holding
Foshan Meiguiyuan Commercial +—A+aA RMB4,400,000

Investment Co., Ltd.
("Foshan Meiguiyuan”) (note (a))

PRC/Mainland China
15 November 2010
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Cont'd)

Company (Cont'd)

ESNGE 2N
REEDM

FMKL,/ RILK 2817 /8M  Percentage of equity
BENBERAH REHNEE attributable to
Place and date Nominal value the owners of
of incorporation/ of issued/ the Company
4% establishment and registered BE B TEER
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
EMEHREEXERAR hEl /Rl ARE - 50 WMERE
(TEMEAZE]) (Hita) “Z-=%/\ATNH 20,000,0007¢ Property development
Guangzhou Lvdi Baiyun Asset Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000
("Guangzhou Lvdi Baiyun") (note (a)) 19 August 2013
BLTEERMEREBRAF hE /R E N AR® - 100 MERHE
(L8R (Hita) “Z-=%£tAAA 10,000,0007T Property development
Foshan Fengrui Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB 10,000,000
(“Foshan Fengrui”) (note (a)) 5 July 2013
PImEREHERERRAT R/ B ARE - 100 MERE
(THRILBEE ) (M) ZT-=F 30,000,0007% Property development
Zhongshan Hengsheng Real Estate +ZA=+H RMB30,000,000

Investment Co., Ltd.
("Zhongshan Hengsheng”) (note (a))

PRC/Mainland China
26 December 2013
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=F+=-A=4+—H 31 December 2013

RHERABNEKRE (&)

%%ATI%&% S ETE o M B R R
METEBARZAXEBIIHEEREER N
SRR XA TBRIEMS -

BiaF

RETBEXEHAEBHAE A G D
A2 RBHE N E R B ATER -

# BEAEERETELSERE QAR
T —=—FRIFE-—FHREFZHETH
B FLURENE2HRAEZRE
MEE20% R A RS EZHETZSE
SERMEAT  LBRABEIMNEZEREM
m B A8 FF A R #690,993,0007T (KA

:g—zi"f’ H*+_E>&/\Eﬁg

384,924,000 (R =ZZE—=—F+ = A=

+—0) (M#31(e)) BB - BA*i

—=F AEESZEZEMNERNE
BAEmABBETER R _F— @
F-RAEGZEFMER - RESEAN - BN

B2 N BN R 2 BB BN E2R60% K
A0% VAR - BMNBERBEMNEHKD
R B KB EE60% RA0% M IR AN -
AEMNBBRSE BN 9% M I AN AR o
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17.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont’'d)

The English names of certain group companies
registered in the PRC represent management’s
best effort to translate their Chinese names as
they do not have an official English names.

Note:

(a) Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong
or another member firms of the Ernst &
Young global network.

# Pursuant to certain financing arrangements

entered into between the Group and certain
independent alternative financing companies
during the years 2013 and 2012, the
entire equity interest in Zhongshan Tianyue
and a 20% equity interest in Guangzhou
Nanying were legally transferred to those
alternative financing companies so as to
secure the relevant borrowings totalling to
RMB690,993,000 as at 31 December 2013
and RMB384,924,000 as at 31 December
2012 (note 31(e)) provided to Guangzhou
Hongtai and Guangzhou Nanying. In 2013,
the Group legally transferred the entire
equity interest in Guangzhou Zhuorui to
secure certain borrowings which were
obtained by the Group in January 2014.
Prior to the equity transfer, Guangzhou
Shengyu and Zhongshan Tianyue
respectively held 60% and 40% equity
interests in Guangzhou Hongtai; Guangzhou
Shengyu and Guangzhou Zhuorui
respectively held 60% and 40% equity
interests in Zhuhai Jiayu; and Guangzhou
Shengyu held a 99% equity interest in
Guangzhou Nanying.
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BRI 2B - AR BN % F B FORRKE
BEAYZETSBETRERGUAEET
IR BN M AT H EEEEN
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HAR M DA 15 7E & BB 8 0 B M = B M) AR A A
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17.

—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)

Note: (Cont’d)

Under the afore-stated arrangements, the
Group was endowed with a repurchase
obligation at a fixed amount on a
future date upon repayment of those
borrowings for the transfer of equity
interest in Zhongshan Tianyue and at a nil
consideration for the transfer the equity
interest in Guangzhou Nanying, and
the Group was endowed a preferential
right to repurchase the equity interest
in Guangzhou Zhuorui at an agreed
amount within a specific period in the
future. Furthermore, the Group retains the
power to operate and manage Zhongshan
Tianyue, Guangzhou Hongtai, Guangzhou
Zhuorui, Zhuhai Jiayu and Guangzhou
Nanying (collectively referred to as the
“Project Companies”) in terms of ordinary

businesses and the day-to-day operation.

In this regard, considering the facts that the
substance of the financing arrangements is
to collateralise the borrowings for project
development and the Group retains the
practical ability to govern the financial and
operating policies of the Project Companies
so as to obtain benefits from their operating
activities, the directors of the Company are
of the view that the financial position and
operating results of these Project Companies
should be consolidated into the Group's
financial statements in full, irrespective of
the equity transfer from legal perspective.
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18. REZNATWERE 18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
—E-=F —E——F
2013 2012
AR¥FT ABRETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EIEFEE Share of net assets 45,304 42,934
REBHABERA ZERREE M BEmE The Group’s balances with its associates are
MIsF25H # 55 - disclosed in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.
REBEEE AR ZFFBEOT ¢ Particulars of the Group's associates are as
follows:
rEERGRAEEE AL
Percentage of equity
interests attributable
TR EEN i/ EH to the Group
WHR A REMNHEE +ZA=t-8H
Place and date of ~ Nominal value 31 December
28 registration and of registered/ —B—-=F —T--F IEEEK
Name business paid-up capital 2013 2012 Principal activities
ARKEFT
RMB’000
BMmERAGRARRARN TE /AR 11,000 30 30 MERE
(TEMERAE]) * “T——%=R+H Property development
Guangzhou Times Hongwei PRC/Mainland China
Investment Company Limited A 10 March 2011
("Guangzhou Times Hongwei") *
BNTHZAREE MEETRHERA A ¢I/$Imm 200,000 20 20 M
(TBMBE]) * “Z-—F+-A=H Money lending
Guangzhou Baiyun PRC/Mainland China
Heyintaifu Micro-credit Co., Ltd. A 3 December 2012
("Guangzhou Baiyun") *
* ZERRRFANT BHRERRECEBLK * The financial statements of these companies

SRR B PIR L K EET AN E 55 T 2 ERAE
AREVE MR B AR EZ o

for the years were not audited by Ernst &
Young, Hong Kong or another member firm
of the Ernst & Young global network.
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18. REE NTIHNKRE (&) 18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(Cont'd)

A ZENRTRFMEMERELELTE K A The English names of these companies
ZENAZ RN AW AANNBREEES represent the best effort made by the
ZENTIND Y EBEEMNS - directors of the Company to directly

translate their Chinese names as they do not
register any official English names.

TwERsEams AEB S QA% The Group’s associates are considered not

BRAHBAREEWTERX - material to the Group, either individually or in

aggregate.
19. EEBEBEEERAR 19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
BEEREEE Deferred tax assets
WMEHRRELERIEEE 2 EBUT The movements in deferred tax assets during
the reporting period are as follows:
B HER
THEER EETNH
REEE RE ENZE Hitr @5t
Accruals
and other
deductible
Provision temporary
Tax losses for LAT difference Others Total
ANEETT ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFTL
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
n-E——F—-f—-H At 1 January 2012 46,204 9,652 37,639 668 94,163
EEREABRKGA/(NK) Credited/(debited) to the consolidated statement
(Hit10) of profit or loss during the year (note 10) (1305 12,293 (22,598) 951 (10,659)
WZBE-—#+-A=1+-HRK At 31 December 2012 and at 1 January 2013
W-E-=%—-F—H 44,899 21,945 15,041 1,619 83,504
EEREABRKGA/(NR) Credited/(debited) to the consolidated statement
(Hi10) of profit or loss during the year (note 10) (21,932) 4,208 19,406 (449) 1,233
WZE-=%+-f=1—H At 31 December 2013 22,967 26,153 34,447 1,170 84,737
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19. EEHREBEEERES (®)

19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

BEEMIEAE Deferred tax liabilities
WEHRREEHEAE ZE3HNT - The movements in deferred tax liabilities
during the reporting period are as follows:
WERELAR HENELT
RGOV AARAE
BERE RENFER BE Eft @it
Fair value Taxes on
adjustment  Revaluation undistributed
arising from of profits of the
acquisition of  investment  subsidiaries
subsidiaries ~ properties in the PRC Others Total
NEETE  AREFT  AREFT  AERETT  AEETL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
W-%5--F-A—H At 1 January 2012 (1,083,233) (160,125) (999) (234)  (1,244,591)
WERE AR (W54 Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35(A)(i) (43,072) - - - (43,072)
FEENFABERIA /(1K) Credited/(debited) to the consolidated statement
(Hiz10) of profit or loss during the year (note 10) 13,541 (27,500) (2,038) 234 (15,763)
RZE-ZF+-A=+-HR At 31 December 2012 and at 1 January 2013
R-E-=F-f-H (1,112,764) (187,625) (3,037) - (1,303,426
WERB LR (fat351) Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35(A)(}) (8.422) - - - (8,422)
EENEABRESA /(K)  Credited/(debited) to the consolidated statement
(Hiz#10) of profit or loss during the year (note 10) 126,610 (10,500) (28,512) - 87,598
RZE-=%+-F=1-H At 31 December 2013 (994,576) (198,125) (31,549) - (1,224,250)
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EEBEEERER (50

RZE—=F+-_A=+—H '  A&E8=E
ERFEALBENTLSBTEBEEAAR
#130,919,000c (=T —ZF: AR ®
133,294,00070) ' ZEBEAIBEAZF
T WIRHEEE 2 A AF BEERM
M- ARBEWENZSBEERELEHRIE
BE HEABBEZHBAREZ2E —BR
B WRANKNA LS EEERBFELE
SHITIEES1E o

RIFPBECEMEHE - BERNPEAMLAK
VRN ERECESIRENIEREENRE
BUI0%HTEM - ZIEHBFRKBE-FTZN
F-A-HEEN BRARE-_ZTTLF+
“A=T—HRESHNARN - P EAHE
SNEIIR B E P RDAE B IR FT A R E -
AP EABREBENREK - iAKENE @ @
AR EZ10% - At - AEEBERERFE
WKL 2B AR —EZENF—A—H
MEL 2 BNDIKZ B HRIBI -

WERAEBRPRRMKL ZHERAR
—E-ZF+-A=t—HZARELABFA
R #1,087,321,0007T (ZF——F : AR¥
273,373,0007T) FTHERT 2 TN B M SRR
BH-EERE  ZEWBRRANAERBHK
RAKAIBE D IREREEF
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19.

—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

Partial tax losses of the Group of
RMB130,919,000 as at 31 December 2013
(2012: RMB133,294,000) respectively, mainly
arose in Mainland China, which can be carried
forward for a definite period from the year in
which the losses arose for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that
have been loss-making for some time and it is
not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax
Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and
the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

No deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of
RMB1,087,321,000 as at 31 December 2013
(2012: RMB273,373,000) that are subject to
withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future.
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20. BFAEFYE 200 PROPERTIES UNDER
DEVELOPMENT
—E—= —E—-—fF
2013 2012
AR FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TEEAR TN T2 % Properties under development
R expected to be completed:
—F R Within one year 6,929,837 3,467,265
— 1% After one year 6,287,896 5,882,963
13,217,733 9,350,228

7N & 8 5 2% 1 2R 19 6 70 (B P 3 3 9 R B
HELERHEE LM

AEBAETHEFAMER S —=FRK=_ZF
——F+ A=+ HEEETFRITREM
BERA URBRFAEENRITERRE
= (KIFE31()) °
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The Group's properties under development are
all located in Mainland China and situated on
leasehold land with long term leases.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, certain of
the Group’s properties under development
were pledged to banks and other lenders to
secure the bank loans and borrowings granted
to the Group (note 31(c)).
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21. ERTEEHENYE 21. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD
FOR SALE
AREFBEZEIBELENWEMNAFEH R The Group’s completed properties held for sale
o AR IFIELENMETIIZR AR are located in Mainland China. All completed
AR EME 2 BEEER - properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.
PR TIEHELENYENREREGES N The movements in the provision for
T impairment of completed properties held for
sale are as follows:
—E—-= —E—F
2013 2012
HiaE AR¥TFT ABREFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
R F A7) At beginning of year 1,665 -
DRER (B ME) HREEE  Impairment losses recognised/(reversed) 6 (1,665) 1,665
RER At end of year - 1,665

RZE—=F+_-_A=+—H FELEHL
A4 A AR %20,015,000C (— &2 — —4F:
A K %289,250,0007T) WA KEE T2 &
THEFHENMEEER TRITREMER
A LUERBRTFASENRITE R R E A E
K (MEE31(c)) »
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At 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s
completed properties held for sale with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB20,015,000 (2012: RMB289,250,000)
were pledged to banks and other lenders to
secure the bank loans and other borrowings
granted to the Group (note 31(c)).
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22. EWEZHE 22. TRADE RECEIVABLES

REBCZRKESGHEFZRBHEWE -
EHEME HEHBFEREREE R R
R - BB SHEITGE - BINE S
FEREHARNISAmMEDeRBEOEAARE
= of the related sale and purchase agreements.

The Group’'s trade receivables mainly arise
from the sale of properties. Considerations in
respect of the properties sold are payable by
the purchasers in accordance with the terms

Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
The carrying amounts of trade receivables
approximate to their fair values due to their
short-term maturity.
WMEBAKREWE SR IERER ST T - An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

—E—=5F —E—-—4F

2013 2012

AEB¥FT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

=@{AR Within 3 months 461,843 21,327
M= E A 4 to 6 months 796 9,752
+Z+ @A 7 to 12 months 6,870 1,467
—F 1% After 1 year 3,023 -
472,532 32,546

RZE—=Fk-_ZT——F+-_A=+—H
ZEWE S RIBHRRBIWARBE - TRARBIE -
BHEZZRETRAEENEF,EH  mMzE
B PRI MIEARCER o
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The balances of the trade receivables as at
31 December 2013 and 2012 were neither
past due nor impaired and related to a large
number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.
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23. BNNIE RERHMWEWRIE 23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES
—E—= —E—-—fF
2013 2012
AEB¥TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BN LA ERIE Prepayments for leasehold land 1,201,594 1,730,780
e hEMERZIE Deposits and other receivables 251,963 1,210,453
HubFEFIE Other prepayments 442,067 640,334
1,895,624 3,581,567
B Impairment - (1,000)
1,895,624 3,580,567
BB - RS R EMEW S IE T I Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
®B  BABEEEERAAR - are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and have
no fixed term of repayment.
EMNLTHEEREEG EAERE LT AE Prepayments for leasehold land represent
M E e FET R IE o the prepayments for leasehold land with the
application of land use right certificates being
processed.
24. EEZEZINHKE 24. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

AEENFEEIHRERYPEAMESR
REMRTAMEHENE TERERNERKR
B ARBAEENEHNE  BE—FRT
Hl - BRI EEN TR —RT - UEE
= THRITER (MEE31(0) °
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The Group’s held-to-maturity investments
represented short-term investments in certain
financial products sold by a reputable bank in
Mainland China with a determinable expected
interest rate and a maturity period within
one year. Such short-term investments were
pledged to the same bank as a security to
certain bank loans (note 31(c)).
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24, HFEZEHMKRE (&) 24. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS
(Cont'd)
N-E—=F A FUOEERELHEZ T In April 2013, as set out in the relevant
O AEBRSBEKEI NS HIRESEER financing arrangements, the bank loans were
TE - settled by the Group through offsetting with
the short-term investments upon its maturity.
25. FEUEEE N RIRRIE 25. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE
—E—= T4
2013 2012
ARETFT ARBEFor
RMB’000 RMB’000
JrE B 2 ) Due from an associate:
— }%Jllﬁvﬁ%ﬂé‘i - Guangzhou Times Hongwei 70,210 63,880
70,210 63,880

& ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁy’ﬁﬁ#f’f%ﬁg AR

el AREBXREEE - EREZ QT
E’U%ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁ%ﬁ@%ﬁi&ﬁﬁ’&fﬂ B %ZF5E

WOR TR R 3@ B SORUE ©
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The amount due from an associate is
non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. The carrying
amount of the amount due from an associate
approximates to its fair value. None of these

receivables is either past due or impaired.
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—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO DIRECTORS

AEHE Group
—_E—-= —ET——F
2013 2012
AR TFT ARBEFor
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ENESE Due from directors:
— BRI E — Mr. Shum - 1,438
— FoRSEHE — Mr. Li Qiang - 2,000
- 3,438
ENESE Due to a director:
— BRI E — Mr. Shum - 101,478
FARBERSSHE : Maximum amounts outstanding
during the year:
— ZRIEEE — Mr. Shum - 1,438
— BBk E — Mr. Guan Jianhui - 2,000
— RS — Mr. Li Qiang - 2,000
¥ /N Company
—E-=5F —E—-—4F
2013 2012
AR TFT ABRETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BNES Due to a director:
— B gt — Mr. Shum - 11,029

RN ENEENHIAHIFE S RHEL
HyEER - 28 - BREBRKEER -

The amounts due from and to directors arose
from non-trade activities, and they were

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand.
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27. FAHBR EHBIK

27. TAX PREPAYMENTS/TAX PAYABLE

(a) FEHBX (@) Tax prepayments
—E—= —E—-—4F
2013 2012
AR TFT ARBEFor
RMB’000 RMB’000
BB EMFH Prepaid CIT 26,380 51,885
A T B E Prepaid LAT 195,969 182,524
222,349 234,409

(b) FEEHBIK (b) Tax payable

—E—= —E—-—4F
2013 2012
AR TFT ARBFor
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE I ZFTIH CIT payable 283,004 119,267
JE 80 + b 3B (B T LAT payable 114,892 87,794
397,896 207,061
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28. HERBREZLEEBYLURZIRHIERT 28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
F=& AND RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS
REE RAF
Group Company
—g-=f —ZET——-F <—ZEBE-=F —ZT-—-F
2013 2012 2013 2012
AREFT AREFT AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
B e RRITHER Cash and bank balances 3,667,564 1,833,745 785,876 7,356
B R HIRITER Less: Restricted bank deposits
(Hiz(@a) (note (a)) (1,946,083) (897,299) - -
HERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,721,481 936,446 785,876 7,356
IAAREHE (B172(b))  Denominated in RMB (note (b)) 887,194 928,863 - -
AEMEEE Denominated in other currencies 834,287 7,583 785,876 7,356
1,721,481 936,446 785,876 7,356
Bt Notes:

RIBFRBABER  NEBE/ETMER
BARARBERTEPAEHN—TEH
MERBEMGSREANE]RAR - K=
T—ZF+-_A=+—H ZSTRHR
& A AN R #1,099,672,0000C (— & — —
£ AR#¥767,713,0007T) °

N_EB—=F+_-_A=1+—H2REAR
#757,499,000C (ZE ——F : AR
129,586,0007T) M52 PR § 17 X 8 IR R 17
EEZERERFRNERMESHRE Al
BIRITHOER - FReEAZZRERITE
RN T—=F+_A=+—H4cmE
AR¥88,912,000 (ZE—=F : &) 1)
FHRZBHTHRAETHTR EFHAR
#570,000,0007T A 1E SR 17 f& O 1R (B 5%
31(0)) °
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Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the
PRC, certain property development companies
of the Group are required to place certain
amounts of pre-sale proceeds received in
designated bank accounts for specific use.
As at 31 December 2013, such restricted
cash amounted to RMB1,099,672,000 (2012:
RMB767,713,000).

The restricted deposits as at 31 December
2013 amounting to RMB757,499,000
(2012: RMB129,586,000) represented the
loan proceeds in the monitoring accounts
designated by the banks, in which case
the use of the restricted bank deposit
is subject to the banks’ approval. The
remaining restricted deposits amounting
to RMB88,912,000 (2012: Nil) were time
deposits as at 31 December 2013, out of
which RMB70,000,000 were pledged for bank
borrowings (note 31 (c)).
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28. HERBRESEEBYWURZRFIEIT 28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

R () AND RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS
(Cont'd)

Bt - (58) Notes: (Cont'd)

(b)y BR - RIEFRBEETEMINEE I 8948 (b)  The RMB is not freely convertible into other
BRERER  ARB I EHLBKA currencies, however, subject to the relevant
HERE AT AEEEREIERE rules and regulations of foreign exchange
INER BFEBRIRIT  GARBLIBKE control promulgated by the PRC government,
HEE - the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for

other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

FRRIRITHRSBBRITEAFRN X Cash at banks earns interest income at

FEFNEREAEWA - REeERREFEY floating rates based on daily bank deposit

NEZBRHBRTEFRNEASBELIAAR rates. The carrying amounts of the cash and

BE - RITEHREIRHBRITEFRATER cash equivalents and the restricted bank

ITHME N B EERFAIRTT deposits approximate to their fair values. The

bank balances and restricted bank deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default.

29. BNEZFIA 29. TRADE PAYABLES
EREZAHRBMERRENESIRIBZEK An aged analysis of the trade payables as at
EOTWT the end of the reporting period, based on

invoice date, is as follows:
—E-=F —ET——F
2013 2012
AREFT AR¥TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FR Within 1 year 1,906,519 2,185,743
— 1% Over 1 year 507,343 686,903
2,413,862 2,872,646

BNESFATEER 28 ARERZ
KBEHAENBRKEFERE
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The trade payables are unsecured,

non-interest-bearing and repayable within the

normal operating cycle or on demand.
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29. ENEBEZFIE (8 29. TRADE PAYABLES (Cont'd)
MNIEER  ENESTEN AL BEE D The fair values of trade payables at the end
REMBENERSRE  RAAENMNEZ S ZIEH of the reporting period approximated to their
PRAETERAT - corresponding carrying amounts due to their
relatively short maturity terms.
30. HihEMRIEBRESRIE 30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
—Eg—= —E——F
2013 2012
Mt ARMFT ARETFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bz e RIEWRIE Deposits received and receipts in advance 7,487,978 7,342,131
WHETE B AR Z FEfFRIA Payables for acquisition
of project companies 625,000 528,262
JE &t 338 Ko HoAth FE < 5K 1B Accruals and other payables 394,991 741,341
MBI IREE X THERTIE  Payables to independent investors 37(b) 521,247 -
EEEA G ESAN o Other payables to the (a)
&1 5178 non-controlling shareholders 363,585 106,351
9,392,801 8,718,085
st Notes:

RZF-—=FR-F-—ZF+Z/=1—
B (R I AR AR SR S A A A R T RRIE 2
FABRARRTRIMT -

Details of other payables with the
non-controlling shareholders as at 31
December 2013 and 2012 are set out by
project company as follows:

—2-=F —TF

2013 2012

AREFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

& g Guangzhou Nanying i) 62,778 62,778
EAWERE Changsha Meiguiyuan i) - 11,052
B K ER Guangzhou Tiansi ii) 47,626 32,521
EMigibHE Guangzhou Lvdi Baiyun ii) 238,181 -
BMNEEE Guangzhou Guangdechang i) 15,000 -
363,585 106,351
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30.

Hrat - (&)

H B RER BRI (4)

R B RS BN I R
RIZHE - ZEENRBELEBRER
TUE (ZEMEILBRZES
FEIRIREFTE) B/ - WiTEA
1B T AR I = B AN 55 [ 49 JE 45 AR AR
RFAEZEBNEBEEZGRZ
METUGE - ZEEMFKEIAR
BEZEHNGEEEBEERPITAS
Bk o RIFEASE B BEIFITRR TR
—E-ZHF+-A=+—HiTuUX
WrahE EFRENETSEA
R 62,778,000 1775 #% E BT
1B o

RERRIETR B RAIIFERRIRAAR Z
ey REREHBRIRE  BER
BREEEERMR -
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30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

(Cont’'d)

Notes: (Cont’'d)

(a) (Cont'd)

i)

The balances mainly represented
the payables to the non-controlling
shareholder of Guangzhou
Nanying. Such payable balances
were in connection with certain
properties, the economic benefits
of which solely attributable to the
non-controlling shareholder, and
where appropriate measured by
reference to the market value of
the associating asset balances,
reflecting the Group’'s obligation
to the non-controlling shareholder.
Changes in the fair values of those
payables are credited/charged to
the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. Pursuant to a supplemental
agreement entered into between
the Group and the non-controlling
shareholder as at 31 December
2013, it is mutually agreed to settle
such payable at a fixed amount of
RMB62,778,000.

Balances represented the balances
with the non-controlling shareholders
of the Project Companies which were
interest-free, non-secured and with
no fixed term of repayment.



B 35 Sk B
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

31. ;tEERITEFLEMER 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS
AND OTHER BORROWINGS
—E-=F —EC
2013 2012
ERFI=E L +8 gl 15 e
Effective Effective
interest rate Maturity Amount  interest rate Maturity Amount
(%) ARETT (%) ANRETFT
(%) RMB‘000 (%) RMB’000
i) Current

fﬁﬁé — A Bank loans - unsecured 6.5-6.7 2014 31,000 6.5-6.9 2013 289,284
- EHA Bank loans - secured 5.9-11.0 2014 1,422,143 3.9-93 2013 2,131,165
{ﬁzféﬁk EBHEA Other borrowings - unsecured 4.4-6.9 2014 283,713 5.0 2013 76,000
HiE s — FHA Other borrowings - secured 5.4-12.9 2014 240,638 10.6-12.9 2013 680,814
1,977,494 3,177,263

EiE) Non-current
FITER — EER Bank loans - unsecured 6.8 2016 254,152 6.8-11.0 2014 123,674
ROTEZ - HHE Bank loans - secured 5.4-1.7 2023 4,212,505 5.99.3 2019 1,754,598
HiE s — HA Other borrowings - secured 9.1-12.9 2015 958,397 10.6-13.0 2014 621,264
5,425,054 2,499,536
7,402,548 5,676,799
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31. FFERITERRHEAMMER (4 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS
AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Cont’d)
—E—= —E—-—4F
2013 2012
AR¥FT ARMTFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
DT Analysed into:
FEEEBIRITEN Bank loans repayable:

—F R Within one year 1,453,143 2,420,449
F_F In the second year 1,686,347 1,299,553

B=EFRF In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BEEREME) 2,562,310 532,719
tBiE AT Beyond five years 218,000 46,000
5,919,800 4,298,721

HhEEERER Other borrowings repayable:
—F R Within one year 524,351 756,814
FE4F In the second year 958,397 621,264
1,482,748 1,378,078
7,402,548 5,676,799
Bz Notes:

(a) BR—_E—=FR_FT——F+=-_A=+ (a) Except for certain non-current other

—HEESRABARKE1456BETLEAR
e21BE TG TIHERBEMMER - U
ERZF—=FRZF-—ZFTA=T
—H&BORABARK0EETLIARE
1,116 B & THE TR IRTT R H b8 5K A
B E R E5 25N - FERAIIRIT R E M E K
LUFBIARET B - NEBRITREMER
ZEHeEEAE A EERS -
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borrowings amounting to RMB1,456
million and RMB621 million as at 31
December 2013 and 2012,
and certain current bank and other

respectively,

borrowings amounting to RMB630 million
and RMB1,116 million as at 31 December
2013 and 2012, respectively, bearing fixed
interest rates, the remaining bank and other
borrowings bear interest at floating rates.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank
and other borrowings approximate to their
fair values.
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31. AHERITERREMERK (4 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS
AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Cont'd)
KiaE - (48) Notes: (Cont'd)

(b) BN —_ZE—=F+-A= —1— BE2%EAA (b) Except for certain secured bank loans,
FR#218,091,000T (ZFE——%F : }\Emé} amounting to RMB218,091,000 as at 31
51,451,0007T) HJ%& JFﬁ#EﬁfE O December 2013 (2012: RMB51,451,000)
o ([ZEx]) Rax #ExT]) a—l—{ﬁﬁ\\ ; which were denominated in United States
AEBRBREHRNTBRITERNEAM dollars (“USD") and Hong Kong dollars
EBERAAREE - ("HK$"), all the Group’s bank loans and
other borrowings were denominated in RMB

as at the end of the reporting period.

() RIFEH R ANEENETEEELE AT () At the end of the reporting period, certain
BITREMERA  UEREBEFARERRY of the Group’s assets were pledged to banks
RITETREMET - and other lenders for securing the bank

loans and other borrowings granted to the

Group.

ZELENERES The carrying values of these assets are:

—E—-= —T——F
2013 2012
iirz3 ARMFT AREFT
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
Ay Investment properties 16 1,582,000 1,540,000
) 5 R ) 2 Properties under development 20 1,847,475 1,406,532
SR THEHEHENYE Completed properties held for sale 21 20,015 289,250
TAfT LA EFIE Prepaid land lease payments 15 25,300 228,640
BERTEHEE Held-to-maturity investment 24 - 305,700
B TE HER Pledged time deposit 28 70,000 -
3,544,790 3,770,122
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31. FFRBRITERREMMER (4 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS
AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Cont'd)
KiaE - (48) Notes: (Cont'd)
(d)  BRAEMFEQQF i EBEEN - K (d)  In addition to the pledged assets stated
S E RS AEENIETMNEMERKET in note (c) above, corporate and personal
Rz PEEEAERREERFSY N guarantees and asset security provided by
™ the Group’s related parties related to the
Group's bank and other borrowings are set
out as follows:
—EB-=F —E——4F
2013 2012
AR¥FT AR Fr
RMB’000 RMB’000
S HR{E AR Corporate and personal guarantees:
— ZREELE — Mr. Shum - 2,169,955
— Ik E — Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong - 123,950
— Liang Yuchong#Z = — Ms. Liang Yuchong - 34,000
EAAEEET - Personal asset security:
-3+ — Ms. Li Yiping - 20,000

ZHRBERERSSHREENES AR
RENPITES -

F—NRLTRZHHERENES -

Liang Yuchong#Z + &2 JK I 5 A Y BC (S o
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Mr.

Mr. Shum and one of the executive directors

Cen Zhaoxiong is the younger brother of

of the Company.

Ms. Li Yiping is the spouse of Mr. Shum.

Ms. Liang Yuchong is the spouse of Mr. Cen
Zhaoxiong.
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STRRITERRAMER (4
Wizt - ()
() W-FB-=#+-A=t+—-RA A%£E2

BRITREMERF - —BFARDH R
#FE%@%&%%AEM@&%&%O
L (ZE—=F : AR¥384,924,0007T)
m%#w&a%%a%sm@&amm
A2 MREERER  FBEHRE
AEMBHREMEI7 - ZEREBEBFRARE
99,330,0007T 71 bA & M 7= 2= K930 % A% A< 12
mERIEF -

DK

R-T-=#+-A=+-0 A%KE2
BRI REAMERE - — AR R

MBBENSRE A AR497,525,0007TH
BN A B E N B HA20% TR 1E AR
A ABEHRGEMBHRENTI7 - K&
EHAEEINMHEIO%M AR - ZERE
TG AEM B R TR 7% R AN ERIER
R o

RZE—=F+ZA=+—H  x5E2
HRITREMERF  —BiAFERDE
BERLEEAARK192,287,000T (ZZF—
Z4 :253,620,0007T) MERAREEZR
BB ARBILAREN T BRERIER -
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31.

—_=F—

=%+_-A=-+—H 31 December 2013

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS
AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(e)

At 31 December 2013, out of the Group's
total bank and other borrowings, an
amount of RMB193,468,000 (2012:
RMB384,924,000) included in the current
and non-current liability, was secured
by way of transferring the entire equity
interest in Zhongshan Tianyue, which is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group with
details set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements. RMB99,330,000 out of
such amount was also secured by the pledge
of the 30% equity interest in Guangzhou
Hongtai.

At 31 December 2013, out of the Group’s
total bank and other borrowings, a
borrowing amounting to RMB497,525,000
included in the current and non-current
liability, was secured by way of transferring
20% of ordinary shares of Guangzhou
Nanying, whose details were set out in note
17 to the consolidated financial statements
and in which the Group held 99% equity
interest. These borrowings were also secured
by the pledge of the remaining 79% equity
interest in Guangzhou Nanying.

At 31 December 2013, out of the Group's
total bank and other borrowings, a
borrowing of RMB192,287,000 (2012:
RMB253,620,000) in the
non-current liability was secured by the

included

pledge of the ordinary shares of Foshan
Yudonglong, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group.
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31. FFTERITERREMER (4 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS
AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

KiaE - (48) Notes: (Cont'd)
(99 RZZE—=—F+-A=+—H ' x&EEZ (99 At 31 December 2012, out of the Group’s
HRITREMERF - —HFFARBDEE total bank and other borrowings, a
m &5 A AR#69,200,0007T B9 3R IA K borrowing of RMB69,200,000 included
SEE2ENBARFR LEN S BRIES in the current liability was secured by the
o pledge of the ordinary shares of Zhongshan
Kaixuan, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Group.

hy RZZE—=F+"A=+—"H £ESL (hy  As at 31 December 2013, 70% equity
o Bl A AR122,462,0000T & AR interest in Guangzhou Tiansi and 50%
208,397,000 THH FERIAREE 2 EM equity interest in Changsha Meiguiyuan,
BARIEMRETAI70% R AR kKD B which are the wholly-owned subsidiaries
BRE BI50% A AN 1E AR - of the Group, were pledged as security for

certain borrowings with aggregate amounts
of RMB122,462,000 and RMB208,397,000,
respectively.

32. BERITER 32. ISSUED CAPITAL
% 12 Shares
—E-=F —E--F
2013 2012
EIE Authorised:
10,000,000,0008% (= ~ 4 :3,800,000%) 10,000,000,000 (2012: 3,800,000) 1,000,000,0007& T 380,000/ T
EEg HXE@OJO/%TE ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each HK$1,000,000,000 HK$380,000
EBRTREHRE Issued and fully paid:
1,722,960,0008% (= F——4 : 2011%) 1,722,960,000 (2012: 201) ordinary 172,296,000 7t 20157
TREW - BREE0.10E T shares of HK$0.10 each HK$172,296,000 HK$20.1
HER Fquivalent to AR#
135,778,000 T
RMB135,778,000 -
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BBITER (8)
—ET++F+—A+WB ARARRASE
S - AT IR A380,0008 T 0
/53,800,000% =X EI{E0.1078 7T A I {9

o

ERMRAZBIT

BEBHA-_ZT—=+—A+NH
MEMERZER - ARQAREERAR
380,000/ 7T # Z1,000,000,000/%
TLTeRZE—=ZF+_A+—8"
ARRIBRO EERMERESBER
129,221,979.908 ;L 2 # 17 & AN 1t -
ZEFERE B RIZEE S L% B
TP EE91,292,219, 799 FT AL 17 ©

RN-_E—=F+-A+—H Kx&EH
RARTROREBBERSIER
~rElAREET (TEW]) AR D
3.6/8 T B R B (B 32 17430,740,000%
BREECIBTHLEER  RIBEY
& (B& F S A1) A1,550,664,0007% 7T
(FERY ARE1,222,002,0007T) °
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32.

—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

ISSUED CAPITAL (Cont'd)

The Company was incorporated in Cayman
Islands on 14 November 2007 with an
authorised share capital of HK$380,000
divided into 3,800,000 shares at a par value
of HK$0.10 each.

During the year, the movements in share
capital were as follows:

Pursuant to the written resolution dated
19 November 2013, the authorised
share capital of the Company was
increased from HK$380,000 to
HK$1,000,000,000. On 11 December
2013, a sum of HK$129,221,979.90
was capitalised from the amount

(a)

standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company
and that the said sum was applied in
paying up in full at par 1,292,219,799
new shares for allotment and issue to
Asiaciti.

On 11 December 2013, 430,740,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were
issued in connection with the public
listing of the Company’'s shares on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing”) at a subscription
price of HK$3.6 per share for a total
cash consideration, before expenses,
of HK$1,550,664,000 (approximately
equivalent to RMB1,222,002,000).
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32. SRITEXR (8)

32. ISSUED CAPITAL (Cont'd)

CRER F AR AT D RTIRANES - FR A summary of the transactions during the year
TEWMEHT with reference to the above movements in the
Company’s issued share capital is as follows:
BRI
ROHE CBRTEER RORERE @t
Number Share
of shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
ARETT AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-E——F—F—H At 1 January 2012 201 - 1,452,565 1,452,565
M-Z——F+-A=+—HB% At31 December 2012 and
“E-=%—-Hf—H 1 January 2013 201 - 1,452,565 1,452,565
SRS (fit12) Dividend declared (note 12) - - (873,913) (873,913)
ERMCEIT (Wita) Capitalization Issue (note (a)) 1,292,219,799 101,827 (101,827) -
B LR ET (52(b))  Issue of shares in connection
with the Listing (note (b)) 430,740,000 33,951 1,188,051 1,222,002
“T-CERERERE Proposed final 2013 dividend
(Hrit12) (note 12) - - (188,486) (188,486)
1,722,960,000 135,778 1,476,390 1,612,168
BRI ETRX Share issue expenses - - (57,739) (57,739)
RZZE—=%F+-A=1—H At 31 December 2013 1,722,960,000 135,778 1,418,651 1,554,429
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AARETHEBESS ([58])) - 5&EHE
LEBMUASELERNFLEBRNAER
S2EE HENAERBEEREARAME
RS  EEEXEXRES  SFNHEN
FEREINEMEMAERREE - 53R
BR-F-—Z=ZF+—A+LB (&RHBEH])
BB 2 EIRFORBRMERM - WA 8 RHK
BEEFH10F R AA R ERR -

BREAR QAR ALEIN + AR B RIBIEET S
RARNREMBREF S TREZER
BiEgrERIET o ROE=HE &4
TERBEETHBEEITRMEE Z210%
(BP172,296,0008% iz 17 ) + B TS BB K
DTN EE Z30% » BEARD TR
SN IMER+ @A HE  BEETERES
AERAFES ZBRE (BEETERHR
TEZ BB BITERE TRITZRGDE
FTBHBACDEITRMDAEMNI% -
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33.

—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the
Scheme include any employee, management
member or director of the Company, or any
other eligible participants upon the terms
set out in the Scheme. The Scheme was
adopted pursuant to the resolutions of all the
shareholders passed on 19 November 2013
(the “Adoption Date”) and shall be valid and
effective for a period of 10 years commencing
on the Adoption Date.

The maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme and other share
option schemes of the Company shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of shares in issue as at the Listing Date (i.e.,
172,296,000 shares), unless the Company
obtains approval from its shareholders and
must not exceed 30% of the total number of
shares in issue from time to time. The total
number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to
each grantee (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of shares in issue, unless approval of the
Company’s shareholders is obtained.
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33.

BRESE (8

EREARPBAEXBERESEN 2B A
1.00/ 7T - RIBMEAREEAER D < HE A
ESS2RMNBEAT  WREAMBRAT %
HAR N5 B 1B AR 18 51 8 15 1 A {a 1] 71 B PR 4
HEAREET104F ©

RITERBEFT SR 2 EAEM BT 2K
B zRBESHEFS2RETE  HELF
ERTIMREE  (WREEH (AREEH
ABRGMERARHAMETESFEENHT)
ERBMARIMERABFHRERMIID
IEA RO W E ¢ (IDEZRF L B H AR E
XEBRAEMERSMBRAREBREXRAN
SURHD ISP THE + R(iD P EE

BR-F—=F+— At LARREE
BERIEE SR DRI RBAHE
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33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

The amount payable by the grantee on
application or acceptance of an option shall
be HK$1.00. The period within which the
shares must be taken up under an option shall
be determined by the board at its absolute
discretion and in any event, such period shall
not be longer than 10 years from the date
upon which any particular option is granted in
accordance with the Scheme.

The subscription price in respect of each
share issued pursuant to the exercise of an
option granted under the Scheme shall be
solely determined by the board and shall not
be less than the highest of: (i) the official
closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s daily
quotation sheet on the date of grant, which
must be a day on which the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited is open for the business
of dealing in securities; (i) the average of the
official closing prices of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited's
daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Since the adoption of the Scheme on 19
November 2013, no options have been
granted pursuant to the Scheme.
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34. RESERVES

Group

(a)

(b)

(c)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves
and the movements therein for the
reporting period are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the Group.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group
represents the difference between the
aggregate of the nominal value of
the paid-up capital of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Reorganisation
and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor during the year ended 31

December 2008.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference
between the cost of acquisition and
the non-controlling interests acquired
in the case of acquisition of additional
non-controlling interests of subsidiaries,
or, the difference between the proceeds
from disposal and the non-controlling
interests disposed of in the case of
disposal of partial equity interests
in subsidiaries to non-controlling
shareholders.
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34. RESERVES (Cont'd)

Group (Cont'd)

(d)

Statutory surplus funds

Pursuant to the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC, the companies
now comprising the Group which are
registered in the PRC shall appropriate
a certain percentage of their net
profit after tax (after offsetting any
prior years' losses) calculated under
the accounting principles generally
applicable to the PRC enterprises to
reserve funds. When the balances
of this reserve fund reaches 50%
of the entity’'s capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The statutory
surplus reserve can be utilised to offset
prior years’ losses or to increase capital.
However, the balance of the statutory
surplus reserve must be maintained at
a minimum of 25% of the capital after
these usages.
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RESERVES (Cont'd)

Company

The changes in reserves of the Company for

the reporting period are set out as follows:

ROEER EXRBRE ZithE @it
Share Exchange
premium  fluctuation Accumulated

account reserve losses Total

it ANEEFT  AREFT  AREFT  AEETT

Notes RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R-E-—£-F-R At 1 January 2012 1,452,565 (190,509) (11,771 1,250,285

EERAERGEE Total comprehensive loss for the year - (9,225) (1,844) (11,069)
RZB-—F+-A=+-BR At 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2013

“E-ZE-f-H 1,452,565 (199,734) (13,615) 1,239,216

LUNIA i Capitalisation Issue 32() (101,827) - - (101,827)

BEmRRHET Issue of shares in connection of the Listing 32(b) 1,188,051 - - 1,188,051

RnBETRY Share issue expenses 320) (57,739) - - (57,739)

EELAERLEE Total comprehensive loss for the year - (33,935) (15,913) (49,848)

ERRE Dividend declared 12 (873,913) - - (873,913)

“R-CERERERS Proposed final 2013 dividend 12 (188,436) - - (188,486)

W-E-=%5+-f=1-H At 31 December 2013 1,418,651 (233,669) (29,528) 1,155,454
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35. WEEMIE AT 35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(A) ¥BE6t (A) Business combinations
Bz —F—=F+_-_H=+—HIFE Year ended 31 December 2013
()  WEHKEEE (i) Acquisition of Zhuhai Guoji

RIEBEMNTEARBEEEEGER Pursuant to an equity transfer
Bl ([EMBE]) BREREE agreement entered into by
E%E’]Hﬁ%)ﬁ‘ﬁ—éﬁf—ij\ﬁ]—i— Guangzhou Times Shengyu
TR HREEE T investment Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou
Jllﬂ%@u)\ﬁﬁzz 5000007197 Shengyu”) and the then

ReHEWBIKEBES0%H shareholder of Zhuhai Guoji on
AR - AR BT ALE 15 August 2012, Guangzhou
FEEBRINZEER  KNEBRE Shengyu acquired the 50% equity
HEGREEENREAARE interest in Zhuhai Guoji at a cash
7,685,000 T Y U &5 o W B 7% consideration of RMB2,500,000.
W AGAEBREROEMEA The Group was able to realize a
MU zs o ZRBBIE TR B L gain on acquisition of business
MNYERBEBREERF - HH amounting to RMB7,685,000
BEEESELLHERN T —=F as a result of the then current
— B5ER - MR E B A4 market conditions and the seller’s
SEHHBAR - desire to exit the business. The

gain on acquisition of business
is recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in
other income and gains. Zhuhai
Guoji is a property development
company established in the PRC
with limited liability. The relevant
equity transfer registration
arrangement was completed in
January 2013, and Zhuhai Guoji
became the subsidiary of the
Group.
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35. WIBMIB AR (&)

(A) EBEH (8)

B2 _FT—=F+"FA=1+—HIFE
(4&)

()  WEREEE (&)

EECHATAEEEIKEEERN
THIBE N - BEAEEFEIKE
Bl EM50% R A Em - BEARE
BENE K GHEREIESIE - I
ZEHEREZHEnEm BAERKE
BIEMRE - itk - BHHRE
BlE O AR BB S HRE -

WS B E - I8 B E e A
BERBBNAABENT :

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)

(A)

Business combinations (Cont'd)

Year ended 31 December 2013
(Cont’d)

(i)

Acquisition of Zhuhai Guoji
(Cont’d)

The directors had assessed
the Group’'s ability of control
over Zhuhai Guoji. Although
the Group holds a 50% equity
interest in Zhuhai Guoji, the
Group retains control over
Zhuhai Guoji, and is entitled to
majority beneficiary interests
and bear risks of Zhuhai Guoji.
Accordingly, Zhuhai Guoji is
consolidated into the Group's
financial statements since then.

The fair values of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of Zhuhai
Guoji as at the date of
acquisition were as follows:

KR ERE
HAREE
Fair value

recognised
on acquisition

Wit AEETT

Notes RMB’000
ARy Properties under development 277,696
H b B 5108 & AT kIR Other payables and accruals (248,904)
ELERIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 19 (8,422)
WENFEENAAEBE Fair value of net assets acquired 20,370
FEPE AR M 2 Non-controlling interests (10,185)
g=tga Gain on acquisition 5 (7,685)
B2 LR Satisfied by cash 2,500
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35. WEBHE A A (&) 35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont’'d)
(A) ¥EBa6t (8) (A) Business combinations (Cont'd)
B —_E—=—F+_HA=+—HIFE Year ended 31 December 2013
(4 ) (Cont’d)
(1) WEHGERE (&) (i) Acquisition of Zhuhai Guoji
(Cont’d)
HNEKSHENIRSE RIS E An analysis of the net outflow
EBYFRLODTOT of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the acquisition of
Zhuhai Guoji is as follows:
AREFT
RMB’000
HeHE Cash consideration (2,500)
IR & RIRTTHEH Cash and bank balances acquired -
WEESKEREMIR S RIRSSEWF AL Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the acquisition of Zhuhai Guoji (2,500)

B2 IREERERBE T —
=+ -A=t—HILFENE
AHARERZ IR RS KRA
SABLBEBATE

RN-_ZE—=FtA+tH &~&E
W B 2R B B 82 S MU50% FE 5
BiEm RESHEARARK
2,500,0007T ° WEE SRR 18 + ZR
BEEKATEBR 2 2EMHB R
7 e
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The results of Zhuhai Guoji
acquired had no significant impact
on the Group’'s consolidated
revenue or profit for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

On 7 July 2013, the Group
acquired the remaining 50%
non-controlling interests of Zhuhai
Guoji. The total cash consideration
was RMB2,500,000.
completion of the acquisitions,
Zhuhai
wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Upon
Guoji became the

Group.
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Cont’'d)
(A)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

Year ended 31 December 2012

(ii)

Acquisition of Guangdong
Guangchang

Pursuant to an equity transfer
agreement entered into by
Guangzhou Shengyu and the
then shareholder of Guangdong
Guangchang on 28 September
2012, Guangzhou Shengyu
acquired the entire equity interest
in Guangdong Guangchang
at a cash consideration of
RMB15,000,000. Guangdong
Guangchang is a property
development company established
in the PRC with limited liability.



B ISR R Y

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F—=%F+=-H=+—8 31 December 2013

35. WEBHE A A (&) 35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont’'d)
(A) ¥EBa6t (8) (A) Business combinations (Cont'd)
B —_E——_F+_-_HA=+—HIFE Year ended 31 December 2012
(4 ) (Cont’d)
(i)  WHEEFEES (&) (i)  Acquisition of Guangdong
Guangchang (Cont’d)
PR - EREENAH7 The fair values of the identifiable
BERBBENAABEEOT : assets and liabilities of
Guangdong Guangchang as at
the date of acquisition were as
follows:
WEgREER
WAREER
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
Hiat AREFT
Note RMB’000
fEEgasky/ES Properties under development 769,741
AR RIE « e REMERFRIE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 192
e RIRTTEH Cash and bank balances 350
JETE S FIE Trade payables (501,070)
Ho b FE A RIE K EET RUR Other payables and accruals (211,147)
FRIETRBAE Deferred tax liabilities 19 (43,072)
WERFEENAAEE Fair value of net assets acquired 15,000
LAIR & S 1+ Satisfied by cash 15,000




B TS ¥R R B

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

35. WEEBKHEAF (&) 35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont’'d)
(A) ¥EBa6t (8) (A) Business combinations (Cont'd)
B —_EFE—_—_F+_HA=+—HIFE Year ended 31 December 2012
(%) (Cont’d)
(i)  WEERES (&) (i) Acquisition of Guangdong
Guangchang (Cont’d)
HWEEREENIRERESE An analysis of the net outflow
EBYFRLODTWOT of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the acquisition of
Guangdong Guangchang is as
follows:
ARETF T
RMB’000
4 HE Cash consideration (15,000)
UrBE R84 SR 1T 4585 Cash and bank balances acquired 350
WEEEEESNES RBELZEYFa Y  Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
of the acquisition of Guangdong Guangchang (14,650)

FriEr BERESMREHARE
EREE—T——F+=-A=+
—HIEFEREGRE WA A B
mEATE o
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The results of Guangdong
Guangchang acquired had no
significant impact on the Group's
consolidated revenue or profit
for the year ended 31 December
2012.
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35. WEBKIB AT (&) 35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Cont’'d)
(A) ¥EBa6t (8) (A) Business combinations (Cont'd)
BE-—E——fF{-f=+—HIFE Year ended 31 December 2012
(%) (Cont'd)
(i) WEBEMNZE1ZERARE A (7 (i) Acquisition of Guangzhou Zhide

CNESE SN,

BREEMNKFEHEMNEZE R
HERA—_ZTE——F+=_A+
+ HE LR EEEGE
EE2EHBRRIEMKFRA
R #10,000,0007T ) 3R & ¥ (B
WEERMNEERN100%ER - &
MEETD—ERPBEKIHIRE
ERAERETAR > EEEET
EREYERERYENTIEE
B -HEEABEBMI00%H
PEAEZ « =1 EH100% /) /%
AREE - ZEEE100% 8% A
B EEBIS%HRA
e N &N & 12 B55% /) iR 2N
wme BEEMNEEZENBAREE
E A oSN

BX
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and its subsidiaries (collectively,
“Zhide Group”)

Pursuant to an equity transfer
agreement entered into by
Guangzhou Yongtai and the
then shareholder of Guangzhou
Zhide on
2012, Guangzhou Yongtai, a

17 December

wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group, acquired a 100%
interest in Guangzhou Zhide
at a cash consideration of
RMB10,000,000. Guangzhou
Zhide is an investment holding
company established in the PRC
with limited liability and Zhide
Group is principally engaged
in property investment and
property and hotel management.
Guangzhou Zhide has a 100%
equity interest in Wangu
Supermarket, a 100% equity
interest in Zhide Zhengxing, a
100% equity interest in Zhide
Hotel, a 95% equity interest in
Zhide Technology and a 55%
equity interest in Guangzhou
Guangdechang. Details of the
principal activities of Guangzhou
Zhide's subsidiaries are set out in
note 17.
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35. WEMBLAT (&) 35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont’'d)
(A) ¥EBa6t (8) (A) Business combinations (Cont'd)
B —_EFE—_—_F+_HA=+—HIFE Year ended 31 December 2012
(%) (Cont’d)
(i)  WHEENEZERANE LG (7 (i) Acquisition of Guangzhou Zhide
B mEEF]) (&) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
“Zhide Group”) (Cont’d)
RUEERE  =EEEMNA] R The aggregate fair values of the
BERBENEAREBERAT : identifiable assets and liabilities
of Zhide Group as at the date of
acquisition were as follows:
W B R
WAREER
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
HiiF AREFT
Note RMB’'000
ME - BB L& Property, plant and equipment 14 359,450
REE N RIHIRE Investment in an associate 39,682
FE Inventories 4,642
FEWE 5 Trade receivables 292
B FE Tﬁé&,ﬁ{ﬁfﬂ&mlﬁ Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 606,322
Be RIRITEH Cash and bank balances 21,106
BB S3E Trade payables (16,238)
H b < 5078 R ATk IR Other payables and accruals (415,682)
STRRITERREMER Interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings (582,890)
e K Tax payables (4,251)
12,433
IR R Non-controlling interests (2,433)
WEEFEENAAEBE Fair value of net assets acquired 10,000
UIRE Satisfied by cash 10,000
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35. WEMEBLAT (&) 35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont’'d)
(A) ¥EBa6t (8) (A) Business combinations (Cont'd)
B —_E——_F+_-_HA=+—HIFE Year ended 31 December 2012
(4 ) (Cont’d)
(i) WHEENEZERANE LG (7 (i) Acquisition of Guangzhou Zhide
B mEEF]) (4£) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
“Zhide Group”) (Cont’d)
MWEZEWNEAFINIRES LR An analysis of the net outflow
SEEMEFRENONTWOT ¢ of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the acquisition of
these subsidiaries is as follows:
AREFT
RMB’000
e EE Cash consideration (10,000)
WHEHIR & MIRTT 48R Cash and bank balances acquired 21,106
WEZEMNBARNRe KRS Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
ZEWFRA of the acquisition of these subsidiaries 11,106

FTkiE 2 EEEENEEHAE
EREE—_ET——F+-_A=+
— B IEFERERE WA SF)EIL
mEATE -
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The results of the acquired Zhide
Group had no significant impact
on the Group's consolidated
revenue or profit for the year
ended 31 December 2012.
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont’'d)

(B)

Acquisition of subsidiaries that are
not a business

Entities acquired by the Group during
the reporting period that did not
constitute a business are summarised as

follows:

Year ended 31 December 2013
(i) Acquisition of Zhuhai Jinwu

Pursuant to the relevant sale and
purchase agreement entered into
between Guangzhou Shengyu
and the then shareholder of
Zhuhai Jinwu on 28 December
2012, Guangzhou Shengyu
acquired a 51% equity interest
of Zhuhai Jinwu at a total
consideration of RMB510,000.
Zhuhai Jinwu is a property
development company
established in the PRC with
limited liability. The relevant
equity transfer registration
arrangement was completed in
January 2013 and Zhuhai Jinwu
became the subsidiary of the
Group.
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35. WIBKMIB AR (&) 35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont’'d)
(B) WHBHEBAR (TEA—EEK) (B) (B) Acquisition of subsidiaries that are
not a business (Cont'd)
BE—F——fFEF+ =+ —HIEE Year ended 31 December 2013
(%) (Cont’d)
(1)  WEHKELE (&) ()  Acquisition of Zhuhai Jinwu
(Cont’d)
RIKEHE - ZRESEH R The identifiable assets and
EERBEET liabilities of Zhuhai Jinwu as at
the date of acquisition were as
follows:
Wit ARETT
Note RMB’000
TE S + 30 FE & RKIE Prepaid land lease payments 15 8,035
Be MIRITES Cash and bank balances 6
Hib EN I TE R BT I Other payables and accruals (7,363)
678
FEFE AR M 2 Non-controlling interests (168)
510
ATE AR SZARREE Total consideration satisfied by:
"4 Cash 510
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35. WEBKMIEAE (&) 35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)
(B) WEHBAR (FMEA—EEK) (B) (B) Acquisition of subsidiaries that are
not a business (Cont'd)
BE_—_FE—=#FF+_H=+—HIFE Year ended 31 December 2013
(%) (Cont’d)
(i) WK Ao E (&) (i) Acquisition of Zhuhai Jinwu
(Cont’d)
THINEREATINIR S RIESE An analysis of the net outflow
BYFEFRLERSTOT of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the acquisition of a
subsidiary is as follows:
—Eg—=
2013
AREFT
RMB’000
BeHE Cash consideration (510)
WHEEIR & RIRTTAE Cash and bank balances acquired 6
WM B ARIMNES & Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
REFEWFRD of the acquisition of a subsidiary (504)
(i) WEEENN KA (i) Acquisition of Guangzhou Tiansi
TR 8 1 BR 28 B JE M K HT & B /Y Pursuant to the relevant sale

BRER-_ZFE——-F-_HA=+=H
IV EE Hz - BMNEE
LA A R #250,500,0007T #) 42 %t
18 U B8 B M R HT100% A9 A% A
o BMRHT TR B SZ Y
*FBEBREAR T B 78 B e
HWEETLTHR_T—=ZF=A
FERK - E&tﬁ)\l%ﬂﬁ;ﬂz%zﬁé‘%
I EB AR -
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and purchase agreement entered
into between Guangzhou
Junbao and the then shareholder
of Guangzhou Tiansi on 22
February 2012, Guangzhou
Junbao acquired a 100% equity
interest in Guangzhou Tiansi
at a total consideration of
RMB250,500,000. Guangzhou
Tiansi is a property development
company established in the PRC
with limited liability. The relevant
equity transfer registration
arrangement was completed in
March 2013 and Guangzhou
Tiansi became the subsidiary of
the Group.
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35. WIBMIB AR (&)

(B) WHEMEBARR (RMER—HEEK) (B)

BE—_F—=-F1+ZA=1+—HILFE
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(i)

WREEINAH ()
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BERAEMT -

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Cont'd)

(B)

Acquisition of subsidiaries that are
not a business (Cont'd)

Year ended 31 December 2013
(Cont’d)

(ii)

Acquisition of Guangzhou Tiansi
(Cont’d)

The identifiable assets and
liabilities of Guangzhou Tiansi as
at the date of acquisition were
as follows:

Kt AEETT

Note RMB’000
Yaf A E B Prepaid land lease payments 15 298,228
M FE S OB R FEET RUR Other payables and accruals (47,728)
250,500

ATB AR ENE - Total consideration satisfied by:
Re Cash 250,500

BB ARIMAEE RREF
EYWFRLOITIT

An analysis of the net outflow
of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the acquisition of a
subsidiary is as follows:

—E—=

2013

AREF T

RMB’000

REHE Cash consideration (250,500)

WHER IR & MIRTTAEER Cash and bank balances acquired -
WHEMBARINER S & Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

HEEBYE RN of the acquisition of a subsidiary (250,500)
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36. HEME LT 36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
B2 -_FE-—-=F+-BA=+—HLEE Year ended 31 December 2013
AEBRFEARNIAARK,010,0007T & 48 ¥ During the year, the Group disposed of
BRBYE=TEEHBLEEEANIKER Foshan Zhide Wangu and Zhuhai Shengyuan
TCC BEFEESNNT to independent third parties for an aggregate

consideration of RMB1,010,000 with details
set forth as follows:
Hat AREFT
Notes RMB’000

HEMFEE - Net assets disposed of:

W - BENMERE Property, plant and equipment 14 3,311

ey Inventories 3,611
TERRIB - e Rk H A EKFIR Prepayments, deposits and

other receivables 17,687

Be MIRITE Cash and bank balances 4,692

JERTE 53R Trade payables (3,770)

JEETFR B & E At FE A FIE Accruals and other payables (25,935)

(404)

HERB AR Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 5 (1,414)

AR : Satisfied by:
ke Cash 1,010

MEERNBRARNBEES MRS EEMFRA
RoHTIT

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and
cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of
subsidiaries is as follows:

AREFT

RMB’000

e HE Cash consideration 1,010

HEMIR e RIRITHER Cash and bank balances disposed of (4,692)
HENBATNES R Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

ReFEWMFRA of the disposal of subsidiaries (3,682)

157



501 75 S Y
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—T—=%+="H=+—H 31 December 2013
37. _AREE 37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(@) RIMEEAXR ANEBEFETHEITET (@)  As at the end of the reporting period,
WiIRBE R E R ZFRBEN the Group provided guarantees in
R ANEBEMNE FES ELH respect of the mortgage facilities
WIRIBER - REBEERER  R&FE granted by certain banks relating
HEEEWMAIRBNZE NEEES to the mortgage loans arranged for
AT EEEHNEEEREBNKES certain purchasers of the Group's
HIBASHERESFNBELSS - B properties. Pursuant to the terms
SEEREERBMENSEEER of the guarantees, upon default
ERE  AEENERDHMERIRES in mortgage payments by these
EXNFEEEEEE S WAREHEFR purchasers, the Group is responsible
EEBRHEER  EHEMRMAESE to repay the outstanding mortgage
— R EEEEEREEE W principal together with the accrued
FREBELY N BREHARARETFAREER interest and penalty owed by the
YRS EMNIRIBE T mAETIEHE defaulted purchasers to the banks,
HIERSZEI0 T - and the Group is entitled to take
over the legal titles and possession of
the related properties. The Group's
guarantee periods start from the dates
of grant of the relevant mortgage loans
and end upon the issuance of real
estate ownership certificates which is
generally within one to two years after
the purchasers have taken possession of
the relevant properties. The amount of
guarantees given to banks for mortgage
facilities granted to the purchasers of
the Group's properties as at the end of
the reporting period is as follows:
—EB—=fF —E——4F
2013 2012
AREFT ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
MAEEMEETEEED Guarantees in respect of the mortgage
HBE IR HAER facilities for certain purchasers of the
Group’s properties 4,068,420 3,210,227
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37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

(a)

(Cont'd)

The directors consider that in the
case of default in payments, the
net realisable value of the related
properties can cover the repayment of
the outstanding mortgage principal
together with the accrued interest and
penalty, and therefore no provision has
been made in the consolidated financial
statements for the guarantees.

Pursuant to a note subscription and
rights agreement on 28 December
2007 (“Note Subscription Agreement”)
among Mr. Shum, Ms. Li Yiping, Asiaciti
and its holding companies, Renowned
Brand Investments Limited, East Profit
Management Limited, the Company
and a group of independent investors
("Investors”), several exchangeable
notes were issued by Asiaciti at an
aggregate consideration of US$200
million to the Investors on 8 January
2008. The loan proceeds were
subsequently injected as an equity
contribution to the Company as its
working capital. In connection with
the loans provided by the Investors
to Asiaciti, the Company (note 32(b))
unconditionally and irrevocably
provided a guarantee to the Investors,
as principal obligor and not merely as
surety, the due, punctual and complete
performance of all obligations of
Asiaciti.
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37.

HARRE (&)

(b)

(&)
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5T o

EROTBEAREBEIK Bt - £
B R T #R R o 0K B R IR 1F 3 fa] 8¢
o

RZE—=FtA+=-H 248 %
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37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

(b)

(Cont’'d)

The exchangeable notes were also
secured by various share mortgages
whereby, among others, all of the
issued share capital of the Company
and the direct or indirect offshore
subsidiaries of the Company were
pledged to the Investors.

Redemption notices were served by
the Investors to Asiaciti, the Company
and other contractual parties in 2009
and 2011, respectively, regarding the
disputes developed among the parties
aforesaid over certain provisions of the
Note Subscription Agreement.

During the year 2012, certain
repayment arrangements (“Repayment
Agreements”) were entered into among
the parties stated above for settling
the disputes discussed in preceding
paragraph whereby the aggregate
repayment amount to the Investors was
amended to approximately US$350
million.

The initial fair value of the guarantee is
not significant, therefore, no provision
has been made in the consolidated
financial statements for the guarantee.

On 12 July 2013, a restructuring deed
was entered into among Mr. Shum,
Asiaciti, the Group and the Investors to
amend and supplement the terms of
repayment arrangement agreed in 2011
("Restructuring Deed”), including but
not limited to the payment schedule
for the amounts owed but not yet
fallen due and the modification of the
security given to the Investors.
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37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

(b)

(Cont'd)

Pursuant to the Restructuring Deed, the
Group assumed the payment obligation
of partial debts approximately
amounting to US$86 million in
September 2013, which will be payable
by three instalments with the amount
of US$24.3 million, US$31.7 million
and US$30.0 million on 15 January
2014, 15 March 2014 and 15 May
2014, respectively. Upon such, the
Company ceased to be the guarantor
of the performance of all obligations
of Asiaciti under the Repayment
Agreements and the Restructuring
Deed, as disclosed above.

Upon completion of the Listing on 11
December 2013, all share mortgages
created over the shares in the issued
share capital of the Company and the
direct or indirect offshore subsidiaries
of the Company and all the security
interests created thereby were
discharged and released with immediate
effect.

on 6 January 2014, the Company
settled all outstanding instalments
(being the third to fifth instalments
due on 15 January 2014, 15 March
2014 and 15 May 2014, respectively.
Given the sufficiency of working
capital and the benefits of releasing
the Company from the secured
obligations and allowing the Company
to focus its attention on operation, the
Group decided to pay all outstanding
instalments in full ahead of the
schedule.
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38. EENRKRMAVIKHA 38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND SHARES
REEBIBITREMERTIIFRNEE &I Details of the Group's assets and shares
MZEE ARBEKRNAGEEER AT 2 pledged for the bank and other borrowings,
METNEERBHZABANFE D IHEHR and in connection with a Note Subscription
A B FHRRMEE31&Z37(b) ° Agreement issued by Asiaciti, the immediate

holding company of the Company, are
included in notes 31 and 37(b), respectively,
to the consolidated financial statements.

39. EEHERH 39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(a) MEAHEEA (a) As lessor

AREBRBEELHETHEREKRE The Group leases its investment

%% ETHBA—Z+F - HEIK properties under operating lease

—MBERKEP X NRESR o arrangements, with leases negotiated

for terms ranging from one to ten
years. The terms of the leases generally
also required tenants to pay security

deposits.
NEREEAR - NEERIE T HEE As at the end of the reporting period,
ZHE N TYEERENEPH R the Group had total future minimum
REEEFAEREWFIEAZENT ¢ lease receivables under non-cancellable

operating leases with its tenants falling
due as follows:

—E—=5F —E—-—fF

2013 2012

AEB¥FT ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

— R Within one year 35,114 37,872
F_ZFERE (BEBEEMSE)  In the second to fifth years, inclusive 52,918 62,227
AFi& After five years 11,251 16,556
99,283 116,655
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39. EEHEZRH (@)

(b) fEREBEA

AEEREBELHERZHHEETH
IMERBERDE (F2HE X)) -
mEMMEMEHR6MEAZE22%F -

R¥EHR - AEBRIE A BEHE
SHE N TIHEE SO RRKE
HEFIREENT ¢

—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(Cont'd)

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of the office
properties and commercial properties
(see (c) below) under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for the properties
are negotiated for terms ranging from
6 months to 22 years.

At the end of the reporting period,
the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

—EB—=fF —E——4F

2013 2012

AR T T ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

—F R Within one year 85,873 81,592
E_ZERF (BEEEME) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 347,553 313,311
HFE After five years 823,712 1,039,002
1,257,138 1,433,905
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39. EEHEZRH (@)

() BREZH

AEER =T — =+ = B IR EN
EE WEBENEERENEAR
RAREEEY  RENE S RET
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R -

W BENIE

BETHBEPHNBEFHA—ET
hF - RH|EHRKR AEERETA
BEEEZ Y RN HEZEN R
KXW P B FURARRN T -

39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(Cont'd)

()

Subleasing arrangements

The Group acquired Guangzhou Zhide
in December 2012 and commenced
its subleasing business through
Guangzhou Zhide and its subsidiaries
by refurnishing and subleasing the
properties leased from independent
third parties to external tenants.

Sublease payments to be received

Terms for subleasing to external
tenants are negotiated ranging from
one to fifteen years. As at the end
of the reporting period, the Group
had total future minimum sublease
payments expected to be received
under non-cancellable subleasing
arrangements with its tenants falling
due as follows:

—EB—=fF —E——4F

2013 2012

AREFT ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

—F R Within one year 119,820 69,605
E_ZERF (BEEEMSE) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 193,412 88,561
hF% After five years 46,275 14,157
359,507 172,323
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BT EXMEE39 M E 2 TH EAIEFFIB SN -
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B 35 Sk B
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—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

40. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease
commitments detailed in note 39 above, the

Group had the following capital commitments

as at the end of the reporting period:

—E—=5F —E—-—4F
2013 2012
AR¥ T ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

ERTAVERIEL B Contracted, but not provided for:
HELH Leasehold land 1,612,383 1,466,291
FEE Y Properties under development 5,235,880 2,770,273
g1 0)NG Acquisitions of subsidiaries - 196,598
f A& Equity investment 80,000 -
B FE1E AR e 2 Acquisition of non-controlling interests 19,490 495,580
6,947,753 4,928,742

It SN

(W ARFFALEX) 2 -

AEBEREBERTE HERAE

included above, is as follows:

In addition, the Group’s share of an associate’s
own capital commitments which are not

=F-=F =7
2013 2012
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EETAVEREH B4 Contracted, but not provided for:
ek /ES Properties under development 1,467 -
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41. BEARS

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) BRTABEEMBIEBENRS R (a)
RN REBRREH AN EREE T 2

BEAUNTERRS :

In addition to the transactions and
balances disclosed elsewhere in this
report, the Group had the following
material transactions with related
parties during the reporting period:

—E-—= —E——F
2013 2012
iirz3 AR¥TFTT ARETFT
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
mEMMEREEMEEE  Lease of office premises from Guangzhou
BRARIRFE—Su+ Times Development Enterprise Group
HEMH NS Company Limited and Ms. Li Yiping (i) 1,295 1,295
HE TR ENYE Sales of property to Mr. Bai Xihong (i) - 1,524
1,295 2,819
Hiet - Notes:
(i) BMmERERCEEEEGRAF ([HR (i) Guangzhou Times Development

(ii)

BREE]) D-—HER_T-TFHZEIH
TEEBIRA T ——FEASHELE
MRS EMEERTORR » T K
TRSEHESLLENEE - HEB X LG
HEBEHTEIE=DHNERLGHRE -

HETHAREZMEBRDZSRERTS
NHEZTTHYRERESL

Enterprise Group Company Limited
(“Times Development Group”) is a
company controlled by Mr. Shum in
year 2010 and by Mr. Cen Jiancai,
father of Mr. Shum, from year 2011
onwards. Ms. Li Yiping is the spouse
of Mr. Shum. Rates and conditions of
the lease are similar to those offered
to independent third parties.

(i) Prices of the property sold to Mr.
Bai were made by reference to those
offered to independent third parties.
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(b)

(i)

(i)

(iii)
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BEEBALRS (&)

HEBRINAEMXS

RZZE——F AEENUARK
10,000,000 T KIS B (1t JH1R 5
FEEEERNEEFERET)
HEEHEENETERBRBE
WEREEE - ZRFHNE—F
FIBEHEARE VBRI
35(A)(iii)A °

R-ZT——F  AEEETHEE
FEARNEBEESHETIRITE
HREMETERER - AKE
e THRITERTHEBB S E
ERER - BHZSEXZ0NE—F
FIBHEAGE M HREN T
31(d)A °
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A E TEE -

RBEMA - KRR E2ENE
NRRREERSEEAREHESEMN
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41.
(Cont'd)

(b)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other transactions with related

parties

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

In year 2012, the Group acquired
Zhide Group from certain close
family members of Mr. Shum at a
consideration of RMB10,000,000
which was based on the then
net asset value of Zhide Group.
Further details of the transaction
are included in note 35(A)(iii)
to the consolidated financial
statements.

In year 2012, certain related
parties of the Group have
provided guarantees in
connection with certain bank
loans and other borrowings
obtained by the Group. Certain
bank loans of the Group are
also secured by the assets of its
related party. Further details of
these transactions are included
in note 31(d) to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group used certain
trademarks registered by Times
Development Group on a royalty
free basis during the reporting
period.

Estate, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Times Real
Company, used and occupied
a property with a gross floor
area of approximately 111 sq.m.
owned by Ms. Li Yiping, the
spouse of Mr. Shum, on a rental
free basis during the reporting
period.
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41. BEEAERS (&)

() HERBLHREREER

() AEBEEBEAANEENG
BREEIB I E AL A SRR A M
258267 °

(i)  BAERABMFHIRILRTATIKE -
REE N AR E BERERA A
R B R AR R A ) A R T R R
BB BRBEEERH
fR o

(d) ZFEKEEXEEEAS (BRES) WF

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Cont’'d)

(c) Outstanding balances with related
parties
(i) Details of the Group's balances

with its associates and directors
are included in notes 25 and
26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(ii) As disclosed in the consolidated
statement of financial position,
the Group’s and the Company’s
balances with the immediate
holding company and the
ultimate holding company are
unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed terms of repayment.

(d) Compensation for key management

B : personnel (including directors) of

the Group:
—E—=5F —E-—4F
2013 2012
AR TFT ABRETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e EAE KRB Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 19,439 16,124
FIRENRTEAL Performance related bonuses 29,196 1,313
BRIRD T2 Pension scheme contributions 351 11
48,896 17,648
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—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

INSTRUMENTS BY

The carrying amounts of each of the

categories of financial instruments as at the

end of the reporting period are as follows:

Group

31 December 2013

TREE Financial assets

B & AT E
EWHRIE ®EmEE BET

Available-

for-sale

Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
ANERETFIT AREFIT AREKETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
e E 55 IE Trade receivables 472,532 - 472,532

STATENFIE - e MEAM Financial assets included in
FEWZENSREE prepayments, deposits and

other receivables 251,963 - 251,963
JrE LB 2 B B R Amount due from an associate 70,210 - 70,210
AHHERE Available-for-sale investments - 3,100 3,100
ZRRFIERITIER Restricted bank deposits 1,946,083 - 1,946,083
Re MREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,721,481 - 1,721,481
4,462,269 3,100 4,465,369
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42. RERESHNERMIA (&) 42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (Cont'd)
AEH (B) Group (Cont'd)
—E—=fFF+=-Ff=+—H (&) 31 December 2013 (Cont’d)
SHEE Financial liabilities
IR
AT E
MeEmaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
AR For
RMB’'000
FETE 55k IE Trade payables 2,413,862
ST AE fib B FRIE & Financial liabilities included in other
EErTEN AR payables and accruals 2,480,137
SFEIRITERREMER Interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings 7,402,548
12,296,547
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42. REFEINEMT A (&) 42,

&R (&)

—E——fF+—-H=+—H

—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (Cont'd)

Group (Cont'd)
31 December 2012

TREE Financial assets
REZE ERk  FAtHE
ERE RURE MepEE st
Available-
Held- Loans for-sale-
to-maturity and financial
investments  receivables assets Total
ANERETFTT AREFT AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EWE 558 Trade receivables - 32,546 - 32,546
SABRNKE B Financial assets included in prepayments,

HiBUHIBENERERE deposits and other receivables - 1,209,453 - 1,209,453
BEZIERE Held-to-maturity investments 305,700 - - 305,700
W EEERARINFIER Amount due from the immediate

holding company - 437,507 - 437,507

e S el ¥NG[op ] Amount due from the ultimate
holding company - 16 - 16
JE U Bt &/ R F0R Amounts due from associates - 63,880 - 63,880
EWE ERFIE Amounts due from directors - 3,438 - 3,438
AftHERE Available-for-sale investments - - 3,100 3,100
R AIRITIE R Restricted bank deposits - 897,299 - 897,299
ReRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents - 936,446 - 936,446
305,700 3,580,585 3,100 3,889,385
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42. REFEINEMTA (&) 42,

EE (&)

—E——HFEF+-H=+—H (£&)

FINANCIAL

CATEGORY (Cont'd)

Group (Cont'd)

31 December 2012 (Cont’d)

INSTRUMENTS BY

SHEE & Financial liabilities
FAiBER
W HAREE
KA E FIERHY
HeEmasE EMARE fst
Financial
liabilities at
Financial fair value
liabilities at through profit
amortised cost or loss Total
AEREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
8 5 I8 Trade payables 2,872,646 - 2,872,646
HAHEMENTER Financial liabilities included in
EstIEMSREaE other payables and accruals 1,259,139 62,778 1,321,917
STRBRTERNEMER Interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings 5,676,799 - 5,676,799
ENEENFIR Amount due to a director 101,478 - 101,478
9,910,062 62,778 9,972,840
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42. REFEINERMIA (8) 42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (Cont'd)
AT Company
THEE Financial assets
—B—-=fF —E——4F
2013 2012
AR¥TFT AR FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EXRREKRRE Loans and receivables
FFATERFIE - e R Financial assets included in prepayments,
HEMERFIEN R EE deposits and other receivables 273 12
A Q=R 2l /NG O E S E] Amount due from the
immediate holding company - 437,507
JE U B AR AR A B RO TR Amount due from the
ultimate holding company - 10
A S NGIEEO B Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,356,235 922,852
RENIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 785,876 7,356
2,142,384 1,367,737
THEE Financial liabilities
—E—= —E——%F
2013 2012
AR¥FiT ARBFor
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
REBERTTENESRES Financial liabilities at amortised cost
A E s BT FIE Financial liabilities included in
EErIENTRAE other payables and accruals 546,894 -
FET T B A A8 kI8 Amounts due to subsidiaries 116,133 117,867
JEfNEEHFIE Amount due to a director - 11,029
663,027 128,896

173



B ISR R Y

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F—=%F+=-H=+—8 31 December 2013

43. ERMTENAABERAAEBEE

AN

AEEERARTNERHTHAE (REeEAE
EﬁAM fﬁifﬁ SERIN) 2ERESRBAEAR
BEWT

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT

The carrying amounts and fair values of
the Group’'s and the Company’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair
values, are as follows:

IRES%E AREE
TEE Group Carrying amounts Fair values
—g-=% -T-—F =%-=f T F
2013 2012 2013 2012
ARM TR AEETT AREFRT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
LREE Financial assets
AHBERE Available-for-sale investments 3,100 3,100 3,100 3,100
3,100 3,100 3,100 3,100
LREE Financial liabilities
S AE A FER FRIE R Certain financial liabilities
S ZRIEHETF included in other payables
e = and accruals - 62,778 - 62,778
- 62,778 - 62,778
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& FERTERLEMERNAIABESR

HEEmemAs  TESaNRSIARER
HIA 2 ER o

AEEORELERENCEREEKAES
HESMTAARBEFENBERLIER -
CERMEEGERAMBAERR NER
TEHH EEREEBES TR TAEEN
BEEN  WEBEHEMANEERA -

TRHEERAENAABENZIABER
577 (RESBERBERIN) BRIRS TAIR
ZEBARK - W TINTARBRGAREER
REE:
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43.

—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT (Cont'd)

Management has assessed that the fair values
of cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
deposits, trade receivables, trade payables,
financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, an amount due to the immediate
holding company, amounts due from
associates, amounts due from directors, an
amount due to a director, held-to-maturity
investments, available-for-sale investments,
other financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank
loans and other borrowings approximate to
their carrying amounts, largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s corporate finance team headed
by the finance manager is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures
for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The corporate finance team
reports directly to the chief financial officer.
At each reporting date, the corporate finance
team analyses the movements in the values
of financial instruments and determines the
major inputs applied in the valuation.

The fair values of the financial assets and
liabilities are included at the amount at which
the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:
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43, 2R ITEMNAABERAAEMEE 43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
& (&) HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT (Cont'd)
DPREBEEER Fair value hierarchy
TREIAEESRTEN AR BETN=E The following tables illustrate the fair value
i measurement hierarchy of the Group's
financial instruments:
BARBHETENEE Assets measured at fair value as:
MMEETEFAER
Fair value measurement using
ERTIZHRE EXTER  EATUER
(B18) GAYE ($28) GAYE (53E) i
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
market inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ANEEFT ANEETFT ANEETFT ANEETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AHEHERE Available-for-sale investments
WZE-=F+-f=1-H As at 31 December 2013 3,100 - - 3,100
RZE-—F+-A=1+-H As at 31 December 2012 3,100 - - 3,100
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13. € R TENAAREBERAAEBERE 43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
;&) HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT (Cont'd)
NRBEER (&) Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)
BARBHETENEE Liabilities measured at fair value as:
MEEHEFAER
Fair value measurement using
ERTRRE EXTEE EATUEE
(B1E) BAHE (%28) WAE ($3E) @t
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
market inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ANEEFT ANEETFT ANEETFT ANEETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SAHMENTER Certain other payables included in
EEENET other payables and accruals:
BN -
R-ZE-=F+-A=+—H As at 31 December 2013 - _* _ %
R-B-—£+-R=1-H As at 31 December 2012 - 62,778 - 62,778
* SPAEMEMARIE N ETRENE T EM * Those certain other payables included in

ERNREBERA-_E—=F+_A=1+—AK
EFHERETSRBEE - BRI
30(a)(i) °

FR - FIEBHEF2BE2EITEALBENE
B TESREENSRAGEAREH
FIB(ZZT——F &)
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other payables and accruals were mutually
agreed to be settled at a fixed amount at 31
December 2013. Details are set out in note
30(a)(i).

During the year, there were no transfers of
fair value measurements between Level 1 and
Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
for both financial assets and financial liabilities
(2012: Nil).
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=F+=-F=4+—H 31 December 2013
tREMREEEERBE

AEENEREETERRBASMNESFE
Y XRGIRITER - BRESFE - FHA
BNRE - e EMERTENERE
E HERIHPKRE  BRERERARN
IR - RUEE RRIFIE - BRESZR
ERAHELERE - ARENERBETIE
BREENE SR - sT AEMENELE
AARIENERMARE  SrERITERMEAME
AR ENEFHIFA

RBEERR  AEENSB TANKEESE
HHENAEBERS - 2ABEGMERNFER
AT ER SR TANEETISERTIAE
- ZEHREFETEME PRI EER
EREZHEER  ALEXTABHERE
E o BRRZEBDEEBRETES

st
= o
Ean
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44,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The financial assets of the Group mainly
include cash and cash equivalents, restricted
bank deposits, trade receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, held-to-maturity
investments, an amount due from the
immediate holding company, an amount
due from an associate, amounts due from
directors, and available-for-sale investments.
The financial liabilities of the Group mainly
include trade payables, financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals,
interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings, and an amount due to a director.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments approximated to their fair
values at the end of the reporting period.
Fair value estimates are made on a specific
point in time and based on relevant market
information about the financial instruments.
These estimates are subjective in nature
and involve uncertainties and matters of
significant judgement, and therefore cannot
be determined with precision. Changes in
assumptions could significantly affect the
estimates.
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44. cREREEEEREE (&)

(a)

FEmB
AEEEENTENREHEBEA

SEEBAFHMNEMNRITERLEM
fE SRAERE o AR5 1) K 8 A AR e A X
EHIRE R R KRR -

7K 5 [ H B 7O T 35 F) K 2 B L B
EAERBLAF B ARG #E’Jﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ‘“
e -

m:g——iﬁ T-——_Ft+ZH=
+—HB - #:t AR¥5,316,945,0007T

&/\Eﬁ% 939,979,0007T HI & Z 19 LA
/?@*'J%—‘E‘I’E\ °©

TRUBEMELBE BRETEM
BT - A& B Rk PS5 AT A
(FERF BIRTT /\/TA&/E;'ﬁﬂ{ﬁ/#’\ =2
) HNEHEIR A e F B GURIE -
HAEEHEMBRAEELE
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—_=F—

=%+_-A=-+—H 31 December 2013

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Cont'd)

(a)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to changes in
market interest rates relates primarily
to the Group’s bank loans and other
borrowings bearing floating interest
rates. The Group has not used any
interest rate swaps to hedge its interest
rate risk.

The Group's exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s long-term debt
obligations with floating interest rates.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012,
total borrowings of RMB5,316,945,000
and RMB3,939,979,000 were with
floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit before income tax (through the
impact of floating rate bank loans and
other borrowings) during the year.
There was no impact on the Group’s
other equity.
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44. cRIEMREEEEREE (&)

(a)

FEmb (48)

BR FIF 15 B BT 7 B K B 3% 0 H) 3 1Y &
. (B)

44,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Cont'd)

(a)

Interest rate risk (Cont'd)

Increase/(decrease) on profit before
income tax and properties under

development

—E-=F —E——4F
2013 2012
AR FT AR FIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

N PR 100 B £ 2L If 100 basis points decrease in interest rates
B P45 25 A1 A1 Profit before income tax 6,148 2,644
A2 rp 2 Properties under development 35,752 28,052

A ERZ = 100 R &2, If 100 basis points increase in interest rates
B P45 25 1T A1 Profit before income tax (6,148) (2,644)
Gk ES Properties under development (35,752) (28,052)

(b) SMEEREBE (b)  Foreign currency risk

AEBOEBURPEAM  ZHX
SANREHETT - AEBERRE D
BENABHOUARESE mET
RITAE R NE T E A B FRIR R B
A8 TT RRTTEHE © AN E i K
HOMER XE R
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The Group's businesses are located
in Mainland China and most of the
transactions are conducted in RMB.
Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB, while certain
bank balances are denominated in
HK$ and certain other payables are
denominated in USD. The Group has
not hedged its foreign exchange rate
risk.
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44. cRIEMREEEERBE (&)

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Cont'd)

(b) SER (&) (b) Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)
TGP EMEEMEERETEFDN The following table demonstrates the
BT EEHREHI R 0 NEBEBRE sensitivity at the end of the reporting
FE (AR EEEERABGEALBEE period to a reasonably possible change
M) NAEERNIRA (ARKBE in the RMB exchange rates against HK$
EINETS) AR NS TakETTER or USD, with all other variables held
& I8 n] e S ) UK constant, of the Group’s profit before
tax (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities) and the
Group's equity (due to translation of
foreign operations).
B,/ Ex BRBLAT
EELH FMEEH JiR 5 * 38 fn
/(T &) /(T ) / GRD)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) Increase/
in HK$/USD in profit  (decrease)
Rate  before tax in equity*
% AREFT AREFRT
% RMB’000 RMB’000
—E-=% 2013
mAREE B TRE If the RMB weakens against the HK$ 4 41,710
MARE S ETHE If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ (4) (41,710)
MmARE R ETEE If the RMB weakens against the USD - 26,023
WMARKAETTHE If the RMB strengthens against the USD - (26,023)

- FWEBEREBBARIMNER o

* TREZENE

181

No material foreign currency risk was
noted in 2012.

* Excluding retained profits
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44. cREREEEEREE (&)

(c)

EERR

AEEMESETEERR - AREH
RekReFEBYRZRHIEITER
TEERFEAMEARTT

AAABREMBIRRARNRE KRS F

B XRHRITER - BREZRK
B FFATRNFIE - Be MEMER

RENEREE  HAEIHEE
B R ZER AR NRIA - EUE 2
RAMFRIA - ERUE S KRR KAl
HERENEASREAEERES
MEEAFENZEANEERR - A5H
MEMSREEWREEAEERR -

AEECDREMEEUNETHBES
ZHHIRTTRE - I HE L HE IR A TR AR 5%
EBEERTEEREME - ZFERY
REFIBEN G E M RRAMEIT
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Cont'd)

()

Credit risk

The Group has no concentration of
credit risk. The Group's cash and cash
equivalents and restricted bank deposits
are mainly deposited with state-owned
banks in Mainland China.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank deposits,
trade receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, held-to-maturity
investments, an amount due from
the immediate holding company,
amounts due from associates,
amounts due from directors, and
available-for-sale investments included
in the consolidated statement of
financial position represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to its financial assets. The
Group has no other financial assets
which carry significant exposure to
credit risk.

The Group has arranged bank financing
for certain purchasers of its property
units and provided guarantees to secure
the obligation of these purchasers for
repayments. A detailed disclosure of
these guarantees is made in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Cont'd)

(d) FREEREE (d) Liquidity risk
NREEWNEBEBS A GHE R EZNIRS Management of the Group aims to
LKIESEEBY  BAEEFABRTEHN maintain sufficient cash and cash
ERAZCEERBHEEUNNRES KT equivalents, and the Group has
H e TS o available funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities to
meet its construction commitments.
TREERNERNREHRENRD S The table below summarises the
AEXRIBFEN SR EEND HIE maturity profile of the Group’s financial
e liabilities at the end of the reporting
period based on the contractual
undiscounted payments.
rEH Group
Ro-E—=FF+=-H=1+—H At 31 December 2013
RERE 2PRKR3EA 3Z12EA 125  BBSF et
Less than 3to 12 1to Over
On demand 3 months months 5 years 5 years Total
ARBTFT NRETFT ARMTFT ARETFT AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
FER B 5208 Trade payables 2,413,862 - - - 2,413,862
St AHMENZKIE  Financial liabilities
N EEH FIR R included in other
TRBE payables and accruals 1,781,362 - 698,775 - 2,480,137
FRBITERK Interest-bearing bank
HfExR loans and other
borrowings - 1,112,709 1,341,032 5,687,703 304,956 8,446,400
4,195,224 1,112,709 1,341,032 6,386,478 304,956 13,340,399
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44, SHiEREEEEREE (8) 44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Cont'd)
(d) REHEREBE (&) (d) Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
rEE (F) Group (Cont’d)
R-E——FF+_H=1+—H At 31 December 2012
REXRE DR3EAR 321284 1256 HB#SF st
Less than 31012 1to Over
On demand 3 months months 5 years 5 years Total
ANREFT AREFIT NAREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
[ERNE Z5IE Trade payables 2,872,646 - - - - 2,872,646
STAEMMBENTZIE  Financial liabilities
K FEET FIERY included in other
EMARE payables and accruals 1,321,917 - - - - 1,321,917
AEBRITER R Interest-bearing bank
HAb B loans and other
borrowings - 1,165,317 2,401,946 2,684,747 62,050 6,314,060
JERTE FHFIE Amount due to a
director 101,478 - - - - 101,478
4,296,041 1,165,317 2,401,946 2,684,747 62,050 10,610,101
PN Company

ARARBERRNOAAESREED

NEREEE o
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All the Company’s financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting period are
repayable on demand.



44,

B TS ¥R R B

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TREAREEEERBE (8)

EXRERE
AEEEEREEANEZAREREBEE I
BEAECLENES  ARRIBHEFNA
EmFmEEE R e UHSTREER
w*%LX/)&Q\ﬁZKWﬁ °
BHEFN AR §$§<Tﬁ NEBEAFAELS
BRERAE  MREEEEAN « BITHRND
SHHEEENRDER -
AEENGEELHBE R R HEEE T

iéfﬁoé%t“ﬁuiéf FRERCHEER
c BEFRHEINIRT BRI R EAMIERARRE
(ZzDZ*Aﬁﬁ%J:Im%%Fﬁ/TQ WIER S RIRTTHEH
(@%ﬂﬁ%ﬂfﬁé) H o AR ERE
wmZ A, (BIRRA ~ JEIE AR 25 M i)
NEMBIMA (BSE) )58 -
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44,

—E—=%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2013

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Cont'd)

Capital management

The Group’s objectives of capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or

sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of
debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is
calculated based on net debt and adjusted
equity. Net debt is calculated as total
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
(as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position) less cash and bank balances
(including restricted cash). Adjusted equity
comprises all components of equity (i.e., share
capital, non-controlling interests and reserves),
and the net amount due to the Founder, who

is a director.
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44. cREREEEEREE (&) 44,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Cont'd)

EXEHE (8)

R|BEHR BEFBRRCHBRERL TN

Capital management (Cont'd)

The net debt-to-adjusted equity ratios at the

T end of the reporting period are as follows:
—E—= —E——4F
2013 2012
AR FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

SFERITERREMER Interest-bearing bank loans and

(B#E31) other borrowings (note 31) 7,402,548 5,676,799
B e MRTTHEER (B17£28)  Less: Cash and bank balances (note 28) (3.667,564) (1,833,745)
BEFE Net debt 3,734,984 3,843,054
M E Equity 4,008,421 3,206,113
o FERRIIEARERIE (f17226) Add: Amount due to the Founder (note 26) - 101,478
LS Adjusted equity 4,008,421 3,307,591
BEFEALSHBRERL X Net debt-to-adjusted equity ratio 93.2% 116.2%
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BriRa M SRR M TE37(b) ATt & 5
BAENNTEXRREHRER -

AEHE

RZZE—NF—A+HAB  XAAH
B ARG KTERE EARIZE
RSO P L T AR IR R A — 8 i o
T ¥ (E A AKR#632,820,0000T © H
R IR F R SR &R E 2 B
B+ AR®68,040,0007T °

(a)

RZ_Z—NFE-ANH  KRABKMKH
BARBREREEBH LELAFTER
BURBERERMBEREMN—E L - £
H¥HE A AR #197,000,0005T @ HAR
BREERAVHEHRREMEZBAE
= AR #40,000,0007T ©

ISR R 2 HE

MBHREREN_-F

T—NFE_A_-_THESES
SHEE IR RE T o
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46.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

In addition to note 37(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has the
following material subsequent events:

(a) On 15 January 2014, Foshan Yongheng,
a subsidiary of the Company, won
the bidding to acquire a parcel of
land located in Chancheng district,
Foshan City, through on-line public
bidding. The consideration of the land
is RMB632,820,000, of which Foshan
Yongheng has paid RMB68,040,000
as of the date of approval of these
financial statements.

On 8 February 2014, Qingyuan Xilong,
a subsidiary of the Company, won
the bidding to acquire a parcel of
land located in Qingcheng district,
Qingyuan City, through on-line public
bidding. The consideration of the land
is RMB197,000,000, of which Qingyuan
Xilong has paid RMB40,000,000 as of
the date of approval of these financial
statements.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 20 February 2014,



